
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

     

  

 

                                                                                                                                                                                          
  

AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 

 Tuesday, December 6, 2016 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 
   9:00 AM Call to Order  

   Approval of Minutes 

 November 22, 2016 Board Meeting 

 

   Review Agenda 

 

Consent Agenda  

       

Auditor 

a. Title Changes Within Auditor’s Office 

Clerk 

b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 106 

c. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0146-101, Dept. 000 

Commissioners  

d. Organization of Commissioners’ Board Assignments for 2017; Rescinding Resolution 2015-

903 

e. Appointment of K Christensen to the Benton County Mosquito Control Board    

f. Memorandum of Understanding for the Allocation of Juvenile Justice Center Operations & 

Facilities Costs; Rescinding Resolution 04-349 

g. Memorandum of Agreement w/New Vision for Economic Study of Yakima Basin Integrated 

Plan 

h. Residual Equity Transfer from Fund No. 0143-101 to 0144-101 

i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Depts. 102 & 115 to Dept. 102 

j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0120-101, Dept. 000 

k. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 115 to Dept. 123 

l. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 117  

Coroner 

m. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 109 

Facilities  

n. Change Order #2 w/M.G. Wagner Co. for Justice Center Re-Roofing Project 

o. Solicitation of Bids for Procurement of Office Furniture for Justice Center Remodel 

p. Purchase of File Storage System Dividers for Health District from Allied Systems Products 

q. Amended Contract w/Latta Technical Services for Design & Engineering Services for 

Security System  

r. Contract w/Southern Folger Detention Equipment Co for Installation of Security Systems 

Equipment 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator             

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on the highlighted area. *If you would like the full contract please contact our office. 



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 

December 6, 2016 

Page 2 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

s. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110 

Human Services 

t. Amended Agreement #4 w/DSHS for Prevention Services  

Juvenile 

u. Contract w/Heritage Professional Landscaping for Snow Removal Services  

v. Contract w/Lutheran Community Services for Mental Health Clinician 

w. Contract w/City of Benton City for Graffiti Abatement Program 

x. Contract w/Inter-City Legal Processing & Messenger Service 

Office of Public Defense 

y. Superior Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/S Swanberg on Homicide Cases 

z. Superior Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/S Swanberg  

aa. District Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/Z Goytowski  

bb. District Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/D Purcell on Appeal Cases 

cc. District Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement No. 2 w/D Hickman 

dd. District Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/A McKinley 

ee. District Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/S Naccarato  

ff. District Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/A Farabee 

gg. District Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/R Hui  

hh. District Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/D McKinley 

ii. District Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/E Riley 

jj. District Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/C Briggs 

kk. District Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/M Prince 

ll. District Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/E Scott  

mm. District Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/L Mapes  

nn. District Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/B Riley 

oo. District Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/S Cornish  

pp. District Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/J Andrews  

qq. Superior Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/M Trombley 

rr. Superior Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/R Swinburnson  

ss. Superior Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/D Hanson 

tt. Superior Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/K Hudson 

uu. Superior Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/B Pang  

vv. Superior Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/S Ajax 

ww. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136 

Personnel 

xx. 2017 Holidays and Hours for Business Transaction 

yy. Payment to L&S Fencing for Vertical Pivot Gate  

zz. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0503-101, Dept. 000 

Public Safety 

aaa.  Coding Corrections, Between Fund No. 0148101, Dept. 138 

bbb. Amended Agreement w/Mirror Ministries for Human Trafficking Survivor Services  

ccc.  Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 136  

ddd. Letter to Benton Franklin Legal Aid Society for Gang & Crime Prevention Initiative 

eee. Letter to Benton Franklin Health District for Gang & Crime Prevention Initiative  

Public Works 

fff. Public Works Organizational Chart Update 

ggg. Adoption of  2017 Annual Road Program  

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 

December 6, 2016 

Page 3 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

hhh. Purchase of 2010 Freightliner Cascadia Cab from Jim’s Pacific Garages, Inc. 

iii. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0501-101, Dept. 650; Rescinding Resolution 2016-915 

jjj. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500   

kkk. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500 

lll. Accepting Work Performed by Granite Construction Co. for Locust Grove Road Asphalt 

mmm. Contract w/Co-Energy for Gasoline & Diesel Fuel  

nnn. Purchase of TrafficJet Print System from Avery Dennison 

ooo. Contract w/Jack’s Superior Auto Body LLC for Automobile Body Repair  

ppp. Contract w/Mathews Auto Body for Automobile Body Repair  

qqq. Contract w/Mel’s Inter City Collision for Automobile Body Repair 

Sheriff 

rrr. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120  

sss. Contract w/Consolidated Food Management, Inc. for Corrections Food Services 

ttt. Contract w/CI Support for Local Document Destruction Services   

 

Public Hearing 

 

Short Plat Vacation – SPV 2016-003 ~ C Posey 

 

Vacation of Wheat Road ~ M Rasmussen 

 

Scheduled Business  

 

Request for Bids for Metasys Upgrade / Chilled Water Loop Project ~ D Waggoner 

 

Unscheduled Visitors 

   Other Business    
   

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 

 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, November 22, 2016, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 

Present: Chairman Shon Small 

  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 

  Commissioner James Beaver 

  County Administrator David Sparks   

  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 

 

Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 

Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; County 

Engineer Matt Rasmussen; Assistant County Engineer Robert Blain; DPA Ryan Brown; Auditor 

Brenda Chilton; Clerk Josie Delvin;  Assessor Bill Spencer;  Treasurer Duane Davidson; District 

Court Judge Terry Tanner; Undersheriff Jerry Hatcher; Superior Court Administrator Pat Austin;  

Dixie Jamison, District Court; DPA Steve Hallstrom; Clark Posey, Assistant Planning Manager 

and Jerrod MacPherson, Assistant Planning Manager; Public Services Administrator Fred Bowen;  

IT Manager Teri Holmes; Deputy Treasurer Erhiza Rivera; Taylor Ranger, Auditor’s Office. 

 

Approval of Minutes 

 

The Minutes of November 15, 2016 were approved.   

 

Review Agenda 

 

The following items were added to the agenda:   

 Line Item Transfer to the consent agenda for District Court 

 Executive session regarding performance of public employee 

 Executive session regarding County’s position on labor issue  

 

Consent Agenda 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “gg”, 

adding “hh” (Line Item Transfer for District Court).  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon 

vote, the Board approved the following: 

 

Auditor 

a. Surplus of Personal Property  

Building 

b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0149-101, Dept. 000 



 - 2 - 

Commissioners  

c. Step Increase Approval  

d. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0133-101, Dept. 000 

e. Non-Bargaining Contribution to Employee Insurance Benefits for 2017 

Facilities 

f. Payment to Perfection Glass for Window Replacement 

Human Services  

g. Agreement w/Community Action Committee for Ten Year Homeless Housing Plan 

Information Technology 
h.  Purchase of Microsoft Surface Pro 4 for Human Services Dept. & Surface Book Tablet for 

Public Works  

Office of Public Defense 

i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136 

Personnel 

j. Salary Request Statement  

k. Establishing Principal Planner Classification Description in Planning Department 

Pest Board 
l. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 105-101, Dept. 000 

Planning 

m. Contract w/S Drummond for Hearings Examiner Services  

Public Safety 

n. Contract w/Boys & Girls Club for Prosser Teen Program Investment    

o. Coding Corrections, Dept. 138 

p. Coding Corrections, Dept. 138 

Public Works 

q. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0501-101, Dept. 650 

r. Purchase from Northend Truck Equipment, Inc. for Specialized Parts 

s. Purchase of Ford Escape from Corwin Ford Tri-Cities  

t. Acceptance of Contractor’s Work Performed by Big D’s Construction  

u. Acceptance of Contractor’s Work Performed by Premier Excavation  

v. Payment to Cascade Software Systems, Inc. for Programming Services 

w. Purchase from House of Automotive Parts & Paint for Tooling Equipment 

x. Contract w/Roadtech, Inc. for Crushing Demonstration Project on Missimer Road 

y. Purchase from Mohawk Resources LTD for Hunter Alignment System 

Sheriff 

z. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120  

aa. Contract w/Mel’s Inter City Collision, Inc. for Towing Services 

bb. Contract w/Pronto Process Service, Inc. for Process Services  

Superior Court 

cc. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 123 

dd. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 123 

ee. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138 to 123 

ff. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138 

Treasurer 

gg. Agreement Extension w/The Master’s Touch for Printing/Mailing Property Tax Statements 

  



 - 3 - 

District Court 

hh. Line Item Transfer, Fund 0000-101, Dept. 111 

 

Board Assignments - 2017 
 

The Board reviewed the assignments for 2017 and agreed to have Commissioner Beaver as 

Chairman and Commissioner Delvin as Chairman Pro Tem.     
 

Continued 2017 - 2018 Public Safety Budget Discussion  
 

Ms. Smith Kelty said the budget was the same as presented the week before, with a few exceptions: 

 

 Mental Health – the request for a salary increase and incentives were not in the budget.  

She said they found a line item for public transportation and if the policy was approved, 

they would have a line item they could use for incentives.   

 Prosecuting Attorney – two months for one legal secretary and three months for another 

and then he would have to find the additional money (this was different from last week). 

 Superior Court - for ½ FTE court commissioner.  Ms. Austin said they were presenting the 

budget to Franklin County next Wednesday. 

 Office of Public Defense – after a review of the proposed contract for screening for clients, 

they would present a two year program and have it placed in the Clerk’s office and moved 

out of OPD.  The Board agreed.   

 Still have to consider moving money from Current Expense to Public Safety and the issue 

of outside contracts.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the 3/10 Public Safety Tax budget as 

presented with the three items: Office of Public Defenses be used for screeners under the Clerk’s 

budget, Franklin County approve the Court Commissioner, and they move $1.2 million from 

Current Expense Gang Task Force into the 3/10 Public Safety Tax budget. Commissioner Beaver 

seconded. 

 

Discussion 

 

Commissioner Delvin said he understood the Undersheriff’s concerns, but felt it made a clean 

move of one program instead of multiple slots and it was easier for the public to understand that it 

was the Gang Task Force as part of the initiative. He said it still allowed the Sheriff’s Department 

to move people around but the funding was above board and transparent for the public to see. 

 

Commissioner Beaver said he agreed.  The voters and public saw an issue and increase in gang 

violence and they answered the call and provided the resources; the gang problem was identified, 

they had a task force, and this is where the money was going.  He said it was clean and clear that 

their taxes were going to support the efforts against gangs.   

 

Chairman Small said he could go either way.  He stated he spent quite a bit of time going through 

the multiple options with the Sheriff’s office and realistically wanted to let the Sheriff’s office take 



 - 4 - 

it out of Corrections.  He said it was going to happen this year or the next budget cycle and there 

were many unknowns with the jail. 

 

Commissioner Beaver said he has been in support of law enforcement for decades but that was not 

the issue; he was not telling someone how to manage their departments.  They needed to get a 

balanced budget and take care of the taxpayer money and this was directly related to what the 

voters approved; they were going to use the money for gang problems.   

 

Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mr. Sparks asked for clarification on the Mental Health budget and if the Board understood it 

included expansion.  Ms. Smith Kelty said the request would allow the program to go to 70 to 75 

participants as presented.   

 

After discussion, the following motion was made: 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to keep the Mental Health Court at the current level up 

to 40 participants, pending a review at the end of 2017.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon 

vote, the motion carried.   

 

Continued 2017 – 2018 Budget Discussion 

 

Mr. Sparks said with the last piece of moving the $1.2 million from Current Expense, they were 

ready to go to public hearing.  He said they would get all the budgets changed and to the 

departments so they could review before it was presented at the December 20 public hearing.   

 

Other Business 

 

Fred Bowen introduced Jerrod MacPherson as the newest planner to join Benton County.   

 

Commissioner Delvin reported on his attendance at the WSAC meeting including the discussion 

regarding water and exempt wells and permitting.   

 

He said he also talked to some people about lobbying for funding for capital projects, i.e. the 

mental health wing and juvenile justice building and they were willing to give Benton County a 

proposal to look at this and approach the legislature (start to finish to get funding for those 

projects).  The Board said it was agreeable to looking at a proposal.   

 

Also, he wanted to have the letters prepared inviting legislators to come talk to Commissioners 

about county priorities.  The Board agreed.   

 

Commissioner Delvin said he was willing to meet with the city administrators and county 

administration regarding the proposed jail contracts and explain what the County was trying to do.  

The Board agreed.   

 

The Board recessed at 9:57 a.m., reconvening at 10:06 a.m.   



 - 5 - 

 

Executive Session – County’s Position on Labor Issues 

 

The Board went into executive session at 10:06 a.m. with DPA Steve Hallstrom for approximately 

15 minutes to discuss the County’s position on labor issues.  Also present were David Sparks, 

Loretta Smith Kelty, Jerry Hatcher, Brenda Chilton, Ryan Brown and Cami McKenzie.   The Board 

came out at 10:24 a.m.  No decisions were made in executive session. 

 

MOTION:  Chairman Small moved to authorize the Auditor to process leave accruals for this one 

time only for any type of leave accrual except sick relative to the 2016 overpayment in the Sheriff’s 

office.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried. 

 

Executive Session – Performance of Public Employee 

 

The Board went into executive session with David Sparks at 10:25 a.m. to discuss the performance 

of a public employee for up to 10 minutes.  The Board came out at 10:33 a.m.  No decisions were 

made.   

 

Account Payables 

 

Check Date 11/10/2016 

 

Procurement Cards #1116 

Total of all Funds $331,513.38 

 

Check Date 11/18/2016 

 

Warrants #148193-148333 

Total of all Funds $3,619.40 

 

Warrants #148334-148525 

Total of all Funds $1,041,543.37 

 

Transfers #11181601-11181610 

Total of all Funds $724,430.13 

 

Payroll 

 

Check Date: 11/15/2016 

 

Payroll Draw Checks 

Warrant #240137-240138 

Direct Deposit #: 119248-119430 

Total all funds:  $111,012.53 

 

 



 - 6 - 

Payroll Draw Deductions/Transfers 

Taxes #: 101161117 

Total all funds:  $35,679.86  

 

Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 

 

Resolutions 

 

2016-901: Surplus of Personal Property  

2016-902: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0149-101, Dept. 000 

2016-903: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0133-101, Dept. 000 

2016-904: Non-Bargaining Contribution to Employee Insurance Benefits for 2017 

2016-905: Payment to Perfection Glass for Window Replacement 

2016-906: Agreement w/Community Action Committee for Ten Year Homeless Housing Plan 

2016-907: Purchase of Microsoft Surface Pro 4 for Human Services Dept. & Surface Book 

Tablet for Public Works  

2016-908: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136 

2016-909: Establishing Principal Planner Classification Description in Planning Department 

2016-910: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 105-101, Dept. 000 

2016-911: Contract w/S Drummond for Hearings Examiner Services  

2016-912: Contract w/Boys & Girls Club for Prosser Teen Program Investment    

2016-913: Coding Corrections, Dept. 138 

2016-914: Coding Corrections, Dept. 138 

2016-915: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0501-101, Dept. 650 

2016-916: Purchase from Northend Truck Equipment, Inc. for Specialized Parts 

2016-917: Purchase of Ford Escape from Corwin Ford Tri-Cities  

2016-918: Acceptance of Contractor’s Work Performed by Big D’s Construction  

2016-919: Acceptance of Contractor’s Work Performed by Premier Excavation  

2016-920: Payment to Cascade Software Systems, Inc. for Programming Services 

2016-921: Purchase from House of Automotive Parts & Paint for Tooling Equipment 

2016-922: Contract w/Roadtech, Inc. for Crushing Demonstration Project on Missimer Road 

2016-923: Purchase from Mohawk Resources LTD for Hunter Alignment System 

2016-924: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120  

2016-925: Contract w/Mel’s Inter City Collision, Inc. for Towing Services 

2016-926: Contract w/Pronto Process Service, Inc. for Process Services  

2016-927: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 123 

2016-928: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 123 

2016-929: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138 to 123 

2016-930: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138 

2016-931: Agreement Extension w/The Master’s Touch for Printing/Mailing Property Tax 

Statements 

2016-932: Line Item Transfer, Fund 0000-101, Dept. 111 

 

  



 - 7 - 

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 10:33 

a.m. 

 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board      Chairman 

 

 



 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
It is the desire of the Auditor to change several titles for positions within the office so they 
conform with both internal county naming practices, as well as industry standards 
applicable to other Washington counties.   
 
SUMMARY 
 
The following position titles should be changed as outlined below: 
 
  
 Current Title      New Title 

Account Support Officer Account Support Manager 

Election Administrator Election Manager 

Licensing/Recording Supervisor Licensing/Recording Manager 

Prosser Office Manager Prosser Office Supervisor 

Richland Office Manager Richland Office Supervisor 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Pass resolution adopting position title changes. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
No fiscal impact 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date: December 6, 2016        

Subject:   Title Changes 
Prepared by:       T Ranger  
Reviewed by:  B Chilton                   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution     X 
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda              x  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   

WEH
Text Box
a. Title Changes Within Auditor’s Office



RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE FOLLOWING TITLE CHANGES WITHIN 
THE AUDITOR’S OFFICE 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Auditor has the following non-bargaining positions:   
Accounting Support Officer, Election Administrator, Licensing/Recording Supervisor, 
Prosser Office Manager, and Richland Office Manager.   
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Auditor to change the titles to each of these positions 
so they conform with both internal county naming practices, as well as industry 
standards applicable to other Washington counties.   
 
WHEREAS, for purposes of memorialization the new organizational chart is attached to 
this resolution. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the following position titles shall be changed as outlined below: 
 
  
 Current Title      New Title 

Account Support Officer Account Support Manager 

Election Administrator Election Manager 

Licensing/Recording Supervisor Licensing/Recording Manager 

Prosser Office Manager Prosser Office Supervisor 

Richland Office Manager Richland Office Supervisor 

 
 
Dated this _________day of ___________________, 2016. 
 
       

_____________________________________ 
         Chairman of the Board 
 

_____________________________________ 
           Member 
 

_____________________________________ 
           Member 
       

Constituting the Board of County 
Commissioners of Benton County, 
Washington  

Attest: ___________________________ 
Clerk of the Board 



         1151 - County Auditor

1153

CHIEF ACCOUNTANT ELECTIONS

FUND 0111-101

1744 - FINANCIAL RECORDING MANAGER 1586-ELECTIONS

ADMINISTRATOR MANAGER

RICHLAND OFFICE PROSSER OFFICE

1173 - ACCOUNTING 1161 - OFFICE 1139 - OFFICE

SUPPORT SUPERVISOR 1160 - OFFICE SUPERVISOR

MANAGER ASSISTANT IV

1164 - OFFICE 

1155 - PAYROLL ASSISTANT III

SPECIALIST 1591 - OFFICE 1169 - OFFICE 1167 - OFFICE

1156 - ACCOUNTING ASSISTANT III ASSISTANT III ASSISTANT III

ASSISTANT III 1165 - OFFICE 

ASSISTANT III

RECORDING

1158 - OFFICE

ASSISTANT III

FUND 0106-101

1184 - ARCHIVES

RECORDS SPECIALIST

              (1 month - CE)            (6 months - Elec)

1559 - OFFICE

ASSISTANT III

Commissioners

1585 ELECTION.

SPECIALIST

    1587-OFFICE

      ASSISTANT III

RECORDING

BENTON COUNTY AUDITOR
2017-2018

KENNEWICK OFFICE

1154 - LICENSING/

LICENSING

LICENSING LICENSING

1163 CHIEF DEPUTY 

AUDITOR

ASSISTANT III

(5 months - O&M)

1162 - OFFICE

ASSISTANT III

1159 - OFFICE



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 106

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds
shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto; and

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 106



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 000 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 000

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

512.300 1209 Legal Process Assistant II $8,400 512.300 1177 Archive Record Specialist $700

512.300 1211 Legal Process Assistant III $11,850 512.300 1208 Adminstrative Assistant $4,500

512.300 1213 Legal Process Assistant III $15,400 512.300 1210 Records Manager Deputy $3,200

512.300 1214 Accounting Assistant III $3,200

512.300 1217 Legal Process Assistant III $250

512.300 1218 Legal Process Assistant III $2,500

512.300 1220 Legal Process Assistant III $2,700

512.300 1221 Accounting Assistant III $3,200

512.300 1225 Legal Process Assistant IV $3,000

512.300 1226 Legal Process Assistant IV $3,000

512.300 1228 Legal Process Assistant III $1,000

512.300 1229 Legal Process Assistant III $2,800

512.300 1231 Legal Process Assistant III $2,800

512.300 1236 Legal Process Assistant III $2,800

TOTAL $35,650 TOTAL $35,650

Explanation:

Prepared by: Josie Delvin Date:  29-Nov-2016

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Transfer needed to cover shortfalls seen within salaries.

Clerk

Current Expense

106

0000-101



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
CLERK COLLECTIONS FUND FUND NUMBER 0146-101, DEPARTMENT
NUMBER 000

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds
shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto; and

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
c. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0146-101, Dept. 000



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 000 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 000

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

512.300 1703 Accounting Assistant I $13,100 512.300 1131 Collections Supervisor $6,400

512.300 1309 Collections Deputy $6,000 512.300 1177 Archive Records Manager $700

512.300 1138 Legal Process Assistant III $2,000 512.300 1230 Collections Deputy $3,000

512.300 1233 Collections Deputy $11,000

TOTAL $21,100 TOTAL $21,100

Explanation:

Prepared by: Josie Delvin Date:  29-Nov-2016

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Transfer needed to cover shortfalls seen within salaries.

No Department

Clerk Collections Fund

000

0146-101



RESOLUTION  
 
   BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF THE ORGANIZATION OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
FOR THE YEAR 2017; RESCINDING RESOLUTION 2015-903 
 
BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the following constitutes the organization of the Benton County 
Commissioners and staff for the Year 2017 effective January 1, 2017  
 
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD ........................................................................................ James Beaver 
 
CHAIRMAN PRO-TEM ................................................................................................... Jerome Delvin 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR .......................................................................................... David Sparks 
 
CLERK OF THE BOARD ............................................................................................. Cami McKenzie 
 .................................................................................................................................... Marilu Flores, Alt. 
 
BENTON COUNTY ENGINEER .......................................................................... Matt Rasmussen, PE 
 
BENTON COUNTY PEST BOARD SUPERINTENDENT ................................................. Frank Wolf 
 
BENTON COUNTY WSU EXTENSION DIRECTOR ........................................ Gwen-Alyn Hoheisel  
 
BI-PIN ................................................................................................................................... Brian White  
 David Sparks, Alt. 
 
B-F REGIONAL REVOLVING LOAN FUND BOARD ................................................. James Beaver 
 ................................................................................................................................... Jerome Delvin, Alt. 
 
BEN FRANKLIN TRANSIT BOARD .................................................................................. Shon Small 
 .................................................................................................................................... James Beaver, Alt. 
 
BENTON CITY CAPITAL FACILITIES AREA LIBRARY BOARD   .............................. Shon Small 
 ............................................................................................................................................ James Beaver 
 ........................................................................................................................................... Jerome Delvin  
 
BENTON CLEAN AIR AUTHORITY ............................................................................. James Beaver  
 ................................................................................................................................... Jerome Delvin, Alt. 
 
BENTON COUNTY FINANCE COMMITTEE (rotate w/chair) ..................................... James Beaver 
 
BENTON COUNTY HISTORICAL PRESERVATION COMMITTEE ...................... Duane Davidson 
 
BENTON COUNTY LEOFF DISABILITY BOARD ........................................................... Shon Small 
 

WEH
Text Box
d. Organization of Commissioners’ Board Assignments for 2017; Rescinding Resolution 2015- 903



cc: website - 2 -  

BENTON-FRANKLIN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS .............................................. James Beaver 
 ........................................................................................................................................ Shon Small, Alt. 
 
BENTON-FRANKLIN LAW LIBRARY BOARD .......................................................... Jerome Delvin 
 
BENTON-FRANKLIN-WALLA WALLA GOOD ROADS ASSN. .................................... Shon Small  
 .................................................................................................................................... James Beaver, Alt. 
 
BI-COUNTY HEALTH BOARD .......................................................................................... Shon Small 

James Beaver 
Jerome Delvin 

 
CONSOLIDATED JUVENILE SVCS. BOARD .................................................................. Shon Small 
 
CREDIT (Columbia Regional Economic Development Trust)  ......................................... James Beaver 
 
EMERGENCY SERVICES BOARD ............................................................................... Jerome Delvin 
 .......................................................................................................................... Loretta Smith Kelty, Alt. 
 
ENERGY COMMUNITIES ALLIANCE .......................................................................... James Beaver 
 ....................................................................................................................................... Adam Fyall, Alt.  
   
GREATER COLUMBIA BEHAVIORAL HEALTH (RSN) ................................................ Shon Small  

Kyle Sullivan, Alt. 
 

HANFORD ADVISORY BOARD ...................................................................................... Bob Suyama 
 .................................................................................................................................. Larry Lockrem, Alt. 
 
HANFORD AREA ECONOMIC INVESTMENT FUND COMMITTEE…….. ............. James Beaver   
 
HANFORD COMMUNITIES............................................................ Governing Board – James Beaver 
 ......................................................................................................... Administrative Board – Adam Fyall 
 
HOMELESS HOUSING .................................................................................................... Kyle Sullivan 
 
HUMAN SERVICES ADMINISTRATOR ....................................................................... Kyle Sullivan 
 
METRO .................................................................................................................................. Shon Small 
 .......................................................................................................................... Loretta Smith Kelty, Alt. 
 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES (NACo) .................................................. Jerome Delvin 
 
PARK BOARD (ex-officio) ............................................................................................... James Beaver 

Jerome Delvin, Alt. 
 
PROSSER ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION (PEDA) ............ Shon Small (ex-officio) 
  
SOLID WASTE ADVISORY COMMITTEE ....................................................................... Shon Small 
                                                                                                                                   Grant DeJongh, Alt. 
 



cc: website - 3 -  

TRI-CITY REGIONAL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE (ex-officio) ............................... James Beaver 
 
TRI-CITY VISITOR & CONVENTION BUREAU.......................................................... James Beaver 

 
TRI-COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION .............................................. Jerome Delvin 
 James Beaver, Alt. 
 
TRIDEC .............................................................................................................................. James Beaver 

Jerome Delvin, Alt. 
 
WASHINGTON COUNTIES INSURANCE FUND ............................................................ Shon Small 

Lexi Wingfield, Alt. 
 
WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES 
LEGISLATIVE STEERING COMMITTEE .................................................................... Jerome Delvin 
 
WASHINGTON STATE GOOD ROADS & 
TRANSPORTATION ASSOCIATION ............................................................................. James Beaver  
 Jerome Delvin, Alt. 
 
WEST RICHLAND AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE ............................................ Jerome Delvin 
 
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL .................................................................. James Beaver 
 Shon Small, Alt. 
 
YAKIMA FISH & WILDLIFE RECOVERY BOARD ................................................... Jerome Delvin 
                                                                                                                                        Adam Fyall, Alt. 
 
YAKIMA BASIN INTEGRATED PLAN   ...................................................................... Jerome Delvin 

Adam Fyall, Alt. 
 
Dated at Prosser, Washington, this ___ day of December, 2016. 
                                                                
 
       ___________________________________  
       Chairman 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
ATTEST:      Chairman Pro-Tem 
 
 
_______________________________   ___________________________________  
Clerk of the Board      Member 

     
    Constituting the Board of  
    Benton County Commissioners 



WEH
Text Box
e. Appointment of K Christensen to the Benton County Mosquito Control Board





WEH
Text Box
f. Memorandum of Understanding for the Allocation of Juvenile Justice Center Operations & Facilities Costs; Rescinding Resolution 04-349











WEH
Text Box
g. Memorandum of Agreement w/New Vision for Economic Study of Yakima Basin Integrated Plan





























 RESOLUTION 

  
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFER FROM THE 

DISTRESS COUNTY TAX FUND, FUND NO. 0143-101, TO THE RURAL COUNTY 

CAPITAL FUND, FUND NO. 0144-101, AND CLOSING OUT THE DISTRESS COUNTY 

TAX FUND. 
 
WHEREAS, the Distress County Tax Fund, Fund No. 0143-101, was created on June 22, 1998 via 
Resolution 98-312; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Distress County Tax Fund was created for the purpose of collecting and 
expending funds in accordance with RCW 82.14.370; and 
 
WHEREAS, revenue is no longer being collected and it has been determined that remaining funds 
be moved to the Rural County Capital Fund so that it can be distributed for the purpose of 
financing public facilities; and  
 
WHEREAS, a balance of $1,751.68 remains in the Distress County Tax Fund as of October 31, 
2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Administrator recommends closing out the Distress County Tax 
Fund No. 0143-101 as it shall no longer be active; NOW THEREFORE  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that the Benton County 
Treasurer is hereby authorized to transfer the remaining cash funds of $1,751.68 in the Distress 
County Tax Fund, Fund No. 0143-101, to the Rural County Capital Fund, Fund No. 0144-101, as a 
residual equity transfer; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Distress County Tax Fund, Fund No. 0143-101, is hereby closed 
after the residual equity transfer is completed. 
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

         
Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County 

                    Commissioners of Benton County, 
                                       Washington 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
    Clerk of the Board 
 

Orig:   Commissioner’s Office 
cc: Auditor, Treasurer, Clerk Prepared by:  P. Schut 

WEH
Text Box
h. Residual Equity Transfer from Fund No. 0143-101 to 0144-101



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 102
and 115

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that
funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto; and

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Depts. 102 & 115 to Dept. 102



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 102 & 115 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 102

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

514.280 1141 Accounting Assistant III $1,077

514.300 1163 Adminstrative Assistant $6,240 514.280 1153 Chief Accountant $6,048

514.280 2102 Social Security $2,000 514.280 1155 Payroll Specialist $3,528

514.810 1160 Office Assistant IV $4,196 514.280 1173 Accounting Support Officer $5,004

514.810 1163 Adminstrative Assistant $2,457 514.280 1744 Financial Administrator $5,495

514.280 2103 Medical Insurance $4,063

511.600 4931 Fenced Item Contingency $50,170 514.280 2104 Retirement $4,208

514.300 1139 Prosser Office Manager $913

514.300 1154 License/Recording Supervisor $1,915

514.300 1158 Office Assistant III $1,653

514.300 1159 Office Assistant III $2,742

514.300 1162 Office Assistant III $2,755

514.300 2102 Social Security $344

514.300 2103 Medical Insurance $3,314

514.300 2104 Retirement $952

514.810 1139 Prosser Office Manager $913

514.810 1154 License/Recording Supervisor $1,915

514.810 1161 Richland Office Manager $3,291

514.810 1164 Office Assistant III $2,640

514.810 1165 Office Assistant III $1,934

514.810 1167 Office Assistant III $615

514.810 1169 Office Assistant III $861

514.810 1559 Office Assistant III $28

514.810 2102 Social Security $415

514.810 2103 Medical Insurance $7,118

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Auditors

Current Expense

102

0000-101

Department 115

Department 102



EXHIBIT "A"

514.810 2104 Retirement $1,322

TOTAL $65,063 TOTAL $65,063

Explanation:

Prepared by: Paul Schut Date:  02-Dec-2016

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

Transfer needed to cover the shortfall of Salaries and Benefits.



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
CRIME VICTIMS FUND NUMBER 0120-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 000

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds
shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto; and

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0120-101, Dept. 000



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 000 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 000

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

515.701 1683 V/W Coordinator $14,500 515.701 1348 Victim/Witness Coordinator $9,000

515.701 1686 Legal Secretary II $2,400

515.701 2103 Medical Inusurance $2,800

515.701 2104 Retirement $300

TOTAL $14,500 TOTAL $14,500

Explanation:

Prepared by: Paul Schut Date:  30-Nov-2016

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Transfer needed to cover shortfalls seen within Salaries and Benefits.

No Department

Crime Victims

000

0120-101



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 123

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds
shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto; and

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
k. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 115 to Dept. 123



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 115 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 123

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

511.600 4931 Fenced Contigency $17,184 512.210 3507 Non-Replacement Computers $7,184

512.219 4103 Professional Services $10,000

TOTAL $17,184 TOTAL $17,184

Explanation:

Prepared by: Paul Schut Date:  30-Nov-2016

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Transfer needed to cover the purchase of AOC Computers, which has an offsetting revenue, and increased interpreter and guardianship costs

Superior Court

Current Expense

123

0000-101



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 117

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds
shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto; and

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
l. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 117



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 000 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 000

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

515.300 1335 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $43,400 515.300 1338 Chief Criminal Deputy $8,000

515.300 1830 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $30,000 515.300 1340 Legal Secretary Supervisor $4,200

515.300 1828 Legal Secretary V $20,000 515.300 1343 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $5,700

515.300 1347 DPA (DUI Grant) $16,000 515.300 1349 Legal Secretary III $2,400

515.300 1357 Legal Secretary V $9,300 515.300 1351 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $5,900

515.300 1337 Chief Deputy, Criminal $6,650 515.300 1356 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $3,700

515.320 1339 Legal Support Analyst $17,675 515.300 1359 Legal Secretary II $1,000

515.320 1350 Senior Civil Deputy $11,825 515.300 1362 Legal Secretary V $3,200

515.300 1799 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $23,850 515.300 1375 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $6,200

515.300 1704 Legal Secretary V $3,100

515.300 1792 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $6,500

515.300 1794 Legal Secretary II $2,600

515.300 1801 Bilingual V/W Coordinator $15,000

515.300 1829 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $6,200

515.300 2101 Social Security (FICA) $14,000

515.300 2103 Medical Insurance $21,000

515.300 2104 Retirement $10,000

515.311 1358 Child Interviewer $4,500

515.311 2101 Social Security (FICA) $275

515.311 2103 Medical Insurance $1,200

515.311 2104 Retirement $675

515.320 1342 Senior Civil Deputy $14,000

515.320 1360 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $6,100

515.320 1795 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney IV $4,900

515.320 2103 Medical Insurance $4,400

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Prosecuting Attorney

Current Expense

117

0000-101



EXHIBIT "A"

515.320 2104 Retirement $100

515.330 1178 Legal Secretary VI $2,800

515.330 1336 Prosecuting Attorney $9,500

515.330 1341 Office Administrator $5,400

515.330 2101 Social Security (FICA) $250

515.330 2103 Medical Insurance $3,100

515.330 2104 Retirement $2,800

TOTAL $178,700 TOTAL $178,700

Explanation:

Prepared by: Paul Schut Date:  30-Nov-2016

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

Transfer needed to cover shortfalls seen within Salaries and Benefits.



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 109

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds
shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto; and

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
m. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 109



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 000 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 000

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

563.200 4118 Autopsies $9,750 563.200 1934 On Call Pay $1,000

563.200 1143 P.T. Deputy Coroner $1,000

563.200 1179 P.T. Deputy Coroner $1,000

563.200 1261 Coroner $4,000

563.200 4201 Postage $250

563.200 4202 Telephone $500

563.200 4894 ER&R Repair & Maintenance $2,000

TOTAL $9,750 TOTAL $9,750

Explanation:

Prepared by: Paul Schut Date:  01-Dec-2016

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Transfer needed to cover shortfalls seen in Salaries and other Misc areas.

Coroner

Current Expense

109

0000-101



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 12/06/2016     

Subject: Justice Center 

Reroof 

Prepared by:       Larry Hueter 

Reviewed by:   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __X___ 

Pass Resolution  _____  

Pass Ordinance  _____  

Pass Motion  _____  

Other   None 

 

Consent Agenda            

__X___  

Public Hearing            _____  

1st Discussion            _____ 

2nd Discussion            _____ 

Other             _____  
  

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The Board of Benton County Commissioners approved a Contract Agreement with 
M. G. Wagner for the roof replacement at the Benton County Justice Center, 
Resolution 2016-796. The Contract for this agreement contained a insurance 
requirement that is not the contractors responsibility. Change Order No. 2 
was created to remove the paragraph in question from the contract.   
 
 
 
SUMMARY 
During the legal review of the draft contract, Risk Management requested 
Legal to add to the Contract, Professional Liability Insurance. This 
insurance is required for the architectural and engineering design team. The 
construction contractor’s insurances does not include Professional Liability 
Insurance. Benton County will be unable to invoke a claim with the 
construction contractor using this insurance. Therefore this language needs 
to be stricken from the contract.     
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
As an agenda item on the Consent Agenda, the Commissioners sign the Change Order 2 Agreement 
between Benton County and M.G. Wagner Co., Inc. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

 
Zero dollars, zero time. 

 
 
 
 

WEH
Text Box
n. Change Order #2 w/M.G. Wagner Co. for Justice Center Re-Roofing Project



Orig: Facilities  C. McKenzie 
cc:  Auditor, MG Wagner, PA 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

 
       

Chairman of the Board  
 

       
Chairman Pro-Tem 

 
         

Member 
 

Constituting the Board of County 
Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of Benton County, 
 Clerk of the Board      Washington 
 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER NO. 2 FROM MG WAGNER 
FOR THE BENTON COUNTY JUSTICE CENTER RE-ROOF PROJECT TO AMEND 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS  
 
WHEREAS, Benton County entered into a Public Works contract with MG Wagner on October 
18, 2016 per Resolution 2016-796 for the Justice Center Re-roof Project;  
 
WHEREAS, this Change Order No. 2 is necessary to delete Article 7, subsection 2 “Professional 
Liability Insurance” in its entirety; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Facilities Manager and Construction Project Manager recommend the County 
accept Changer Order No. 2; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby approves Change 
Order No. 2 and authorizes the Chairman of the Board to sign Change Order 2 attached hereto.    
 



Change Order #2  11/18/2016 

CHANGE ORDER 

 

CHANGE ORDER 

NO: 
#2 DATE: 11/18/2016 

PROJECT: Benton County Re-Roofing Projects PROJECT NO: 7907 

    

OWNER: Benton County CONTRACTOR: M G Wagner Co Inc Roofing 

     ADDRESS: 7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg “A”      ADDRESS: 1401 Hathaway St 

 Kennewick, WA 99336  Yakima, WA 98902 

     PHONE:       PHONE: (509) 575-0934 

THE CONTRACT IS CHANGED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

In the Contract Agreement, delete Article 7, subsection 2. “Professional Liability Insurance” in its entirety. 

  

The original Contract Sum was: $                  1,867,322.00            

Net change by previously authorized Change Orders: $                       45,958.00         

The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was: $                  1,913,280.00 

The Contract Sum will (increased) (decreased) by this Change Order in the amount of: $                                0.00         

The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be: $                  1,913,280.00 

 

The Contract Time will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by: 0 days 

The date of Substantial Completion as of the date of this Change Order therefore is: July 21, 2017 

ARCHITECT/ENGINEER: CONTRACTOR: OWNER: 

BY: Douglas R. Eadie BY:  BY:  

DATE: 11/18/2016 DATE:  DATE:  

      

 



WEH
Text Box
o. Solicitation of Bids for Procurement of Office Furniture for Justice Center Remodel









































































WEH
Text Box
p. Purchase of File Storage System Dividers for Health District from Allied Systems Products







WEH
Text Box
q. Amended Contract w/Latta Technical Services for Design & Engineering Services for Security System









RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF A PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY AND   
SOUTHERN FOLGER DETENTION EQUIPMENT COMPANY, LLC FOR THE PURCHASE 
AND INSTALLATION OF SECURITY SYSTEMS EQUIPMENT IN SUPPORT OF THE 
SECURITY SYSTEMS RETROFIT PROJECT 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2016-793 dated October 11, 2016, the Board of Benton County 
Commissioners awarded the bid to Folder Detention Equipment Company, LLC, as the company with the 
highest overall score and lowest bid proposal for the purchase and installation of security systems 
equipment for the Security System Retrofit Project in the amount of $2,610,000.00, plus $39,800.00 for 
alternate #1 and $22,000 for alternate #2, for a total contract amount of $2,671,800.00 excluding WSST 
and authorized staff to prepare a Public Works Contract to be  placed on the agenda at a later date; and  
 
WHEREAS, attached is a Public Works Contract between Benton County and Southern Folger Detention 
Equipment Co., LLC, San Antonio, TX – Contractors License #SOUTHFD931JE that further outlines the 
scope of work for the purchase and installation of security equipment for the Security Systems Retrofit 
Project for a total contract amount of $2,671,800.00, plus WSST; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby approves  the attached Public 
Works Contract between Benton County and Southern Folger Detention Equipment Co., LLC for the 
purchase and installation of security equipment for the Security Systems Retrofit Project for a contract 
amount of $2,671,800.00, plus WSST and authorizes the Board to sign; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby authorizes the 
Chairman of the Board to sign the attached Notice to Proceed; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, said contract shall commence upon the date determined in the Notice to 
Proceed and shall terminate December 31, 2017.   
 
 
Dated this _______ day of ________________, 2016. 

 
 

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro Tem  
 

         
Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: _________________________________                             Commissioners of Benton County, 
         Clerk of the Board                                                  Washington 
 
 

Original:  Facilities  P. Schut 
cc:  Auditor, PA, Southern Folger Detention  

WEH
Text Box
r. Contract w/Southern Folger Detention Equipment Co for Installation of Security Systems Equipment



 

NOTICE TO PROCEED 
 

Benton County 
SECURITY SYSTEM RETROFIT 

Kennewick, WA 
 
To: Southern Folger Detention Equipment Company, LLC_ Date: December 6, 2016_ 

(CONTRACTOR) 
 

4634 S Presa St.________________ 
(ADDRESS) 

 
San Antonio, TX 78223__________ 

 
 
You are hereby notified that the Contract Time for the construction of the above Project will commence to 

run on the 1st day of January, 2017.  The work shall be completed within the 300-calendar-day period 

indicated in the Contract Agreement, with the date of Substantial Completion on or before 28th day of 

October, 2017.   

 
 
Benton County 
 
____________________________________________ 
Chairman  
 
 
ACCEPTED 
 
__________________________________________ _______________________ 
(CONTRACTOR) (DATE) 

 

 















































Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor C. McKenzie

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN 
CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 110.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that 
funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
s. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  TRANSFER TO: 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

518-302 4931 Contingency $14,000 518-302 4701 Utilities $14,000

TOTAL $14,000 TOTAL $14,000

Explanation:

Prepared by: Cami McKenzie Date:  17-Nov-2016

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Facilities/Jail Support - Needed for utilities. 

Facilities

Current Expense

110

0000-101



WEH
Text Box
t. Amended Agreement #4 w/DSHS for Prevention Services















WEH
Text Box
u. Contract w/Heritage Professional Landscaping for Snow Removal Services







































WEH
Text Box
v. Contract w/Lutheran Community Services for Mental Health Clinician



































WEH
Text Box
w. Contract w/City of Benton City for Graffiti Abatement Program

















WEH
Text Box
x. Contract w/Inter-City Legal Processing & Messenger Service





































WEH
Text Box
y. Superior Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/S Swanberg on Homicide Cases











WEH
Text Box
z. Superior Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/S Swanberg











WEH
Text Box
aa. District Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/Z Goytowski











WEH
Text Box
bb. District Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/D Purcell on Appeal Cases











WEH
Text Box
cc. District Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement No. 2 w/D Hickman









WEH
Text Box
dd. District Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/A McKinley











WEH
Text Box
ee. District Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/S Naccarato











WEH
Text Box
ff. District Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/A Farabee











WEH
Text Box
gg. District Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/R Hui











WEH
Text Box
hh. District Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/D McKinley











WEH
Text Box
ii. District Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/E Riley











WEH
Text Box
jj. District Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/C Briggs











WEH
Text Box
kk. District Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/M Prince











WEH
Text Box
ll. District Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/E Scott











WEH
Text Box
mm. District Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/L Mapes











WEH
Text Box
nn. District Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/B Riley











WEH
Text Box
oo. District Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/S Cornish











WEH
Text Box
pp. District Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/J Andrews











WEH
Text Box
qq. Superior Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/M Trombley











WEH
Text Box
rr. Superior Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/R Swinburnson











WEH
Text Box
ss. Superior Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/D Hanson











WEH
Text Box
tt. Superior Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/K Hudson











WEH
Text Box
uu. Superior Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/B Pang











WEH
Text Box
vv. Superior Court Public Defense Services Amended Agreement w/S Ajax











WEH
Text Box
ww. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136







WEH
Text Box
xx. 2017 Holidays and Hours for Business Transaction





WEH
Text Box
yy. Payment to L&S Fencing for Vertical Pivot Gate





WEH
Text Box
zz. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0503-101, Dept. 000





WEH
Text Box
aaa. Coding Corrections, Between Fund No. 0148101, Dept. 138







 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: December 6, 2016 

Subject: First Amendment to Personal 

Service Agreement between Benton 

County and Mirror Ministries 

Prepared by: Shyanne Faulconer 

Reviewed by:  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract        X 

Pass Resolution            X 

Pass Ordinance              

Pass Motion    

None    

 
 

 

Consent Agenda     X 

Public Hearing             

1st Discussion             

2nd Discussion             

Other              

 

SUMMARY 

Benton County would like to amend the service agreement with Mirror Ministries for Human Trafficking Survivor 

Services under the Public Safety Tax, per Resolution 2016-549.  

 

Mirror Ministries will use continued and expanded funds to pay for a full-time employee (75% wages paid by Benton 

County) to provide expanded services to victims and the general public in Benton County in the form of outreach, 

training, events, awareness, and services. 

 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

For the time period of July 1, 2016, through December 31, 2016, CONTRACTOR shall be compensated in an amount 

not to exceed five thousand dollars ($5,000).  

 

For the time period of January 1, 2017, through December 31, 2017, CONTRACTOR shall be compensated in an 

amount not to exceed thirty-three thousand dollars ($33,000) (75% of requested budget for 1.0 FTE).  

 

For the time period of January 1, 2018, through December 31, 2018, CONTRACTOR shall be compensated in an 

amount not to exceed thirty-three thousand dollars ($33,000) (75% of requested budget for 1.0 FTE), for a total 2016-

2018 budget not to exceed seventy-one thousand dollars ($71,000). 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 Sign the Resolution to accept proposed agreement 

 Approve proposed agreement by signing all copies where indicated 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Funding for the additional services as outlined in this amendment are provided by the Benton County Public Safety 

Tax. There is no impact on the current expense budget. All revenues and expenditures are from the Public Safety 

Tax Fund 0148-101. 

 

WEH
Text Box
bbb. Amended Agreement w/Mirror Ministries for Human Trafficking Survivor Services



cc: Auditor; PA-Contract Compliance; Mirror Ministries                               Faulconer 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 

IN THE MATTER OF THE FIRST PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

AMENDMENT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON AND MIRROR 

MINISTRIES FOR HUMAN TRAFFICKING SURVIVOR SERVICES 

 

WHEREAS, COUNTY and CONTRACTOR entered into a Personal Services Contract per 

Resolution 2016-549 dated July 12, 2016 (the “Contract”) whereby the CONTRACTOR has 

agreed to perform crime prevention services as set forth in the Contract, with a contract amount 

not to exceed five thousand dollars ($5,000). 

 

WHEREAS, this First Amendment to the Contract is necessary as to increase the quality and 

amount of services provided by the CONTRACTOR; and 

 

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR has requested a 2017-2018 yearly budget of forty-four thousand 

dollars ($44,000) to hire a full-time employee; and 

 

WHEREAS, the COUNTY has agreed to fund seventy-five percent (75%) of the employee’s 

salary, since the program operates in both Benton and Franklin Counties; NOW THEREFORE, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, 

Washington, hereby concurs with the first amendment extending the Contract time through 

December 31, 2018 and increasing the Contract amount not to exceed seventy-one thousand 

dollars ($71,000); and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Board authorizes the Chairman of the Board to sign the first 

contract amendment attached hereto. 

 

Dated this _______ day of ______________, 20____ 

 

 

 
       

Chairman of the Board  

 

       

Chairman Pro-Tem 

 

                

Member 

 

 Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: ………………………………………….. Commissioners of Benton County, 

           Clerk of the Board Washington 
 



1 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO  

PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT  

BETWEEN  

BENTON COUNTY AND MIRROR MINISTRIES 

This Contract Amendment, made and entered into this _______ day of 

__________, 2016 by and between BENTON COUNTY, a political 

subdivision of the State of Washington, with its principal offices 

at 620 Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter “COUNTY”), 

and MIRROR MINISTRIES, with its principal offices at8836 W. Gage 

Blvd. 204A, Kennewick, WA 99336-7155 (hereinafter “CONTRACTOR”). 

Recitals 

WHEREAS, COUNTY and CONTRACTOR entered into a Personal Services 

Contract per Resolution 2016-549 dated July 12, 2016 (the 

“Contract”) whereby the CONTRACTOR agreed to perform crime 

prevention services as set forth in the Contract, with a contract 

amount not to exceed five thousand dollars ($5,000). 

WHEREAS, this First Amendment to the Contract is necessary as to 

increase the quality and amount of services provided by the 

CONTRACTOR; and 

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR has requested a 2017-2018 yearly budget of 

forty-four thousand dollars ($44,000) to hire a full-time 

employee; and 

WHEREAS, the COUNTY has agreed to fund seventy-five percent (75%) 

of the employee’s salary, since the program operates in both Benton 

and Franklin Counties; and 

WHEREAS, both parties have agreed to amend the Contract by 

extending its duration through December 31, 2018, and increasing 

the Contract amount an additional sixty-six thousand dollars 

($66,000), not to exceed seventy-one thousand dollars ($71,000) 

for the duration of the Contract; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the provisions and agreements 

set forth herein, the parties agree that all provisions of their 

original Contract shall remain in effect except the below sections 

which are amended as follows: 



 2 

a) Section 1. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS – Exhibits A, B, and C 

referenced in Section 1 are hereby deleted and replaced with 

the following documents attached hereto: 

 

i) Exhibit A, Scope of Work; and 

ii) Exhibit B, Progress Status Report; and 

iii) Exhibit C, Budget Worksheet. 

 

b) Section 2. DURATION OF CONTRACT 

The term of this Contract shall begin July 1, 2016 and shall 

expire on December 31, 2018. The CONTRACTOR shall complete 

all services by the time(s) specified herein, or if no such 

time is otherwise specified, no later than the expiration 

date. 

 

c) Section 5a. COMPENSATION – is hereby deleted and replaced in 
its entirety with the following:  

For the services performed hereunder, the CONTRACT shall be 

paid as follows: 

a. A detailed description of compensation to be paid by the 
COUNTY for the services set forth in Exhibit A is set forth 

in Exhibit C, “Budget Worksheet” which is attached hereto 

and incorporated herein by reference. Accordingly, for the 

time period of July 1, 2016, through December 31, 2016, 

CONTRACTOR shall be compensated in an amount not to exceed 

five thousand dollars ($5,000). For the time period of 

January 1, 2017, through December 31, 2017, CONTRACTOR 

shall be compensated in an amount not to exceed thirty-

three thousand dollars ($33,000) (75% of requested budget 

for 1.0 FTE). For the time period of January 1, 2018, 

through December 31, 2018, CONTRACTOR shall be compensated 

in an amount not to exceed thirty-three thousand dollars 

($33,000) (75% of requested budget for 1.0 FTE), for a 

total 2016-2018 budget not to exceed seventy-one thousand 

dollars ($71,000). 

  





Exhibit A 

Title of Program 

Gang Crime Prevention and Intervention through Mirror Ministries Human Trafficking Survivor 

Services 

Executive Summary  

Mirror Ministries provides much needed outreach, prevention and intervention with at-risk 

populations, specifically those persons victimized, or at threat of being victimized by, domestic 

human trafficking. These vital programs are delivered through our Survivor Services Human 

Trafficking Advocates to increase public safety. 

Currently, over 50 youth aged 10 and older are being served by a part time Mirror Ministries 

human trafficking advocate. Half of these victims were affiliated with or victimized by one of 

two Benton County gangs, the Northsiders and the Southsiders. Mirror Ministries Advocates 

play a crucial role in the interruption of gang activity and violence through education, 

intervention and advocacy. We need to expand our staffing in order to reach further into the 

community and bring services to currently unreached populations through the addition of a full 

time human trafficking advocate. 

Mirror Ministries is requesting a grant from the Benton County Gang and Crime 

Prevention Initiative of $33,000 annually to expand our mission in Benton County through 

the addition of a full time Human Trafficking Advocate (75% of that full time salary). 

Name, Purpose Mission and Vision of Mirror Ministries  

Mirror Ministries, a 501(c)(3) non-profit organization incorporated in Washington State, was 

founded in 2014 and operates in Benton County.  Mirror Ministries is a volunteer-run 

organization whose board and staff are committed to its mission to respond to domestic sex 

trafficking with the love of Christ through local intervention and restoration while motivating 

many to respond to the global human trafficking crisis with justice and mercy.   

We do this through human trafficking education and trainings of local agencies, businesses, and 

schools, and offering intervention, and advocacy support for victims in partnership with local 

agencies, businesses, and law enforcement.   

Mirror Ministries values respect, empowerment and empathetic care for human trafficking 

survivors and victims. In essence, this means that our volunteers and staff walk alongside 

survivors to empower them as they walk the road to healing, recovery, and stability.   

Our goal is that every survivor of human trafficking will one day be able to look in the mirror 

and see reflected back a person of inherent dignity and worth. Connecting survivors with quality, 

compassionate services, while providing avenues to connect with the community and engage 

society in a healthy way, is paramount to Mirror Ministries' mission.    

Purpose and Need for the Program  

We want to help reduce crime and make Benton County safer. Sex Trafficking, or Commercial 

Sexual Exploitation, is a largely unreported crime, yet we are seeing a dangerous trend. The need 

in our community has been well-documented in the Human Trafficking Assessment of the Tri-

Cities Region in 2013, which reported an estimated 234 girls prostituted per night in the Tri-

Cities (www.newedge.org). From the number of victims surfacing in the few months our part-

http://www.newedge.org/


Exhibit A 

time Human Trafficking Advocate has been offering Survivor Services, we suspect the number 

may be higher. Although Domestic Minor Sex Trafficking (i.e. CSEC) victims come from every 

socio-economic background and ethnicity, our current case load of victims shows a 

disproportionately large percentage of victims from gang members.   

In our current case load of identified victims of sex trafficking, half of them were trafficked 

through local gangs, although not necessarily part of the gang themselves. Internationally, the 

average age of entry into sex trafficking is 12-13 years old, which is the same average age of 

entry we have seen in the Tri-Cities. Most of these victims have been identified through a limited 

population through Juvenile Detention and law enforcement. We know there are many more 

throughout Benton County that we have been unable to reach with our current case load on a 20 

hour a week advocate. The human trafficking problem in our county continues to grow with local 

gang activity, which is responsible for about half of our current victim case load. Local gang 

members find selling a person repeatedly to be a more cost-efficient way of making money than 

selling drugs just once and having to obtain more. They have historically been less likely to be 

charged for human trafficking than drug trafficking as the victims are afraid to testify against 

them. Gaining a victim’s trust, amidst that fear, to share their story is a key element of a human 

trafficking advocate's job.  

Nationwide statistics show that approximately 80% of youth rescued from sex-trafficking have 

been part of our Foster Care system and 90% of runaways will be approached by a trafficker.  

These populations are some of the groups that we have to find ways to reach through an 

additional full time Human Trafficking Advocate. 

Our region had not previously had the awareness or the ability to focus a program on human 

trafficking to educate on the dangers and warning signs, share options for a safe exit, and 

empower these victims to make the hard decisions that will lead them to freedom and a healthy, 

fulfilling life.  

Now, through Survivor Services with Mirror Ministries, we can help keep our county safer and 

reduce crime through increased education/training, early intervention, enhanced reporting, and 

ongoing advocacy. 

Detailed Program or Project Description  

Through increased staffing, Mirror Ministries will bring human trafficking education and 

training to more local schools, businesses, and agencies. This allows for earlier identification and 

intervention for victims; as staff and students are made aware of the warning signs and the help 

available, more victims will be brought forward to receive services. As victims have earlier 

intervention, they are likely to commit less crime under coercion from the trafficker, and they 

will not be formed into traffickers themselves (a common trafficking tactic). Education of the 

greater population prevents human trafficking, which decreases the potential victim pool. As 

people become aware of the tactics used by traffickers and gangs, new crimes/victims will be 

prevented. We aim to bring training/education to 75 or more schools, businesses, and agencies in 

Benton County annually. 

Human trafficking awareness training for businesses has brought more cooperation with law 

enforcement and more suspected activity and viable tips being reported clearly. Mirror Ministries 

is available as a resource to law enforcement in Benton County and each city therein. Victims 



Exhibit A 

respond more expediently to an advocate that they can trust; that trust takes time to build. Having 

an advocate to whom officers can confidently entrust a victim for ongoing services in a complex 

situation reduces their Out of Service time. Each victim’s written statement, achieved through 

the relationship with the advocate, usually points to multiple traffickers who are trafficking 

multiple victims each. Having a full time advocate on staff in addition to our current part time 

advocate will greatly increase our availability to law enforcement. This evidence is crucial for 

Prosecutors to build strong cases against an otherwise hidden crime. This results in more cases 

prosecuted and fewer criminals on our streets. 

We seek to successfully connect trafficking victims to local services to address their needs for 

housing, counseling, drug rehab, education, parenting skills, survivor support group and 

employment. Mirror measures this success by the number of victims connected to services that 

meet their needs: our goal is at least 80% of identified victims are offered 3 or more services 

through Mirror Ministries or a partner agency. Often this means accompanying a victim to a Safe 

House outside of Benton County. As we seek to empower these victims to find their way to 

healing physically, mentally, and spiritually, we find the measure of success when we see them 

living as fully engaged, thriving members of our community. This measurement is best taken in 

small steps as this healing can take many years, so we will measure the day-to-day victories.   

Our current case load of more than 50 identified victims is far beyond a reasonable case load for 

our part time advocate. An additional full time Human Trafficking Advocate will extend our 

coverage and be able to help train qualified community volunteers to assist clients and serve, not 

only those already identified, but seek those who have remained hidden and needing help.    

Mirror Ministries is an active member of Tri-Cities Coalition Against Trafficking, a local 

coalition consisting of law enforcement, legal system, and social service agencies.  Mirror is 

working closely with SARC, My Friend's Place, Juvenile Detention, TC-UGM’s Women’s 

Shelter, Tri-City Pregnancy Network, local schools, and other agencies to identify human 

trafficking victims among their clients and provide advocacy services. This extends the reach of 

their organizations and our outreach as we work together towards education, intervention, and 

restoration.  

Previous Work  

Mirror Ministries programs and services are provided and delivered by highly trained advocates 

and volunteers. The personnel working on this crucial social issue understand it is not glorious; it 

is often very troubling and heartbreaking. Dedication to stopping a societal cancer resides in the 

heart of every Mirror Ministries volunteer and staff.   

Mirror Ministries has been working in our community since December 2014. We hired the first 

Community Human Trafficking Advocate for our Survivor Services (part time) in February 

2016. This Advocate has been working primarily out of Juvenile Detention where she is able to 

follow up with cases she has assessed. Now she is able to extend those services to other agencies 

throughout the community along with well-trained volunteers.  

Before becoming an independent Non-Profit Organization, SOLD: The Human Trafficking 

Experience, now a project of Mirror Ministries, was operated through a local church. This 

mobile, multi-sensory experience details the global and local problem of human trafficking by 

immersing participants in the lives of victims in 9 different parts of the world. This exhibit 



Exhibit A 

challenges viewers to respond to human trafficking as advocates for change, seekers of justice 

and humble providers of mercy. SOLD has been hosted in over 20 locations with over 9,000 

participants throughout the last 5 years.  

Another program, S.U.D.S (Stopping Underage Domestic Sex Trafficking), is an outreach to 

local hoteliers to train and educate hotel staff on identifying human trafficking in their 

establishments. This will be our 5th year to connect with all of the Kennewick, Pasco and 

Richland hotels, offering them training and free supplies during Water Follies weekend. This 

year we also hosted the BEST Inhospitable to Trafficking Training with our local hoteliers and 

law enforcement.  

Previous Grants 

Since its inception, Mirror Ministries has been a vibrant and robust advocate for the prevention 

and intervention of human trafficking. The organization has worked with a number of law 

enforcement agencies to change lives and stop gang criminal activity, reduce trafficking and 

bring advocacy and intervention to those being commercially sexually exploited. 

Previous grants have been received through Women Helping Women Fund Tri-Cities, Columbia 

Community Church, Hope Outfitters and Wheatridge Foundation crowd-funding.  Current grants 

are being sought from the Women Helping Women Fund Tri-Cities, the Three Rivers 

Foundation, Franklin County, SAFE in Washington, local civic clubs, and societies.  Mirror has 

individuals, churches and businesses that are regular contributors. 

Mirror Ministries provides all services and programs at no charge to clients/victims. 100% of this 

grant will be utilized in Benton County.  We have well vetted and trained community volunteers 

to expand our program’s reach and budget.  Mirror Ministries is a stalwart steward of donated 

and grant funding.  Programs are supported by a number of community partners, many of whom 

supply in-kind, budget off-setting, donations of goods and pro-bono professional services. This 

allows Mirror Ministries to maximize the return on donor investments.  

 

 

  

  



EXHIBIT B 

Mirror Ministries 

PO Box 400 Richland, WA 99352 

Tel (509) 948-8792  Fax (509) 628-1141  
 

PROJECT STATUS REPORT 

PROJECT SUMMARY 

REPORT DATE PROJECT NAME PREPARED BY 

January 31, 2017 Gang Crime Prevention & 

Intervention through  

Mirror Ministries Human 

Trafficking Survivor Services 

Tricia MacFarlan,  

Executive Director  

Mirror Ministries 

STATUS SUMMARY- 

 

 

 

PROJECT OVERVIEW- CUMULATIVE 

TASK %DONE   NOTES 

Awareness/Training to 

Business/School/Agency 

   Goal of 75 annually 

Benton County clients 

receiving services 

 

   Goal of 80% of 

identified victims 

offered 3 or more 

services 

New victims/survivors 

identified 

   Expectation of at least 

5 new 

victims/survivors 

annually 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

TOTAL BUDGET INVOICED REMAINING BUDGET  

$66,000 for personnel $  January   $66,000  

 $  Bi-Annual Contract    

    

 



Mirror Ministries 2016‐2018

PERSONNEL EXPSENSES 2016 2017 2018 Total

Salaries & Wages 3,500                44,000              44,000              88,000              

Benefits ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                          

Percent Funded 100% 75% 75%

Personnel Total 3,500             33,000           33,000           69,500              

OTHER EXPENSES 2016 2017 2018 Total

Victim Services 1,200                ‐                         ‐                         1,200                 

Training Supplies 300                    ‐                         ‐                         300                    

Percent Funded 100% 0% 0%

Other Expenses Total 1,500             ‐                  ‐                  1,500                 

TOTAL  BUDGET: 5,000        33,000      33,000      71,000      

EXHIBIT C: Budget Worksheet

Page 1 of 1



WEH
Text Box
ccc. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 136







 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: December 6, 2016 

Subject: Declination Letters for PST 

Gang & Crime Prevention RFP 

applicants 

Prepared by: Shyanne Faulconer 

Reviewed by:  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract         

Pass Resolution             

Pass Ordinance              

Pass Motion    

None   X 

 
 

 

Consent Agenda     X 

Public Hearing             

1st Discussion             

2nd Discussion             

Other              

 

SUMMARY 

Benton County would like to send formal declination letters to two (2) of the 2017-2018 Gang & Crime Prevention 

Initiative RFP applicants for failure to meet requirement of having “gang-related and other crime prevention as a 

central goal” and “an evidence-based approach to this goal” along with other issues and concerns (as addressed in 

the letters). 

 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Benton Franklin Legal Aid Society – Volunteer Lawyer Program: 

This program, as proposed, appears to have services occurring after crime has occurred, thus more fairly 

characterized as intervention not prevention. The program also does not appear to be a new program or 

substantial expansion to the existing services provided by this organization. 

 

Benton Franklin Health District – Harm Reduction Needle Exchange Program: 

This program, as proposed, does not meet the requirement for gang-related and other crime prevention, but 

seems to be better characterized has a public health concern, which, while important, is not the intention of 

the Initiative. The program also addresses an extremely controversial topic in our community, without 

providing clear recommendation on how to combat negative public perception while also appearing to not 

have a direct correlation to gang and crime prevention. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve proposed declination letters by signing all copies where indicated. 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

No fiscal impact. 

 

WEH
Text Box
ddd. Letter to Benton Franklin Legal Aid Society for Gang & Crime Prevention Initiative



 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

     

  

                                          
December 6, 2016 

 

Benton Franklin Legal Aid Society 

7103 W. Clearwater Avenue, Suite C 

Kennewick, WA 99336 

 

 

Dear Ms. Otte, 

 

Thank you for submitting your application to be considered for funding from the Benton County Gang 

and Crime Prevention Initiative.  

 

The current Request for Proposals was met with numerous applications during its cycle, and unfortunately 

we are unable to fund every project requesting support. 

 

We regret to inform you that the review committee for the Benton County Gang and Crime Prevention 

Initiative has denied your proposal, on the grounds that the proposed program fails to meet the key 

purpose of the Initiative as outlined in the 2014 ballot proposition.  

 

As drafted and proposed, your program does not meet the mandatory requirement that all programs “must 

have gang-related and other crime prevention as a central goal, must use an evidence-based approach to 

this goal, and must have specific, measurable, meaningful, and community-significant performance 

measures related to this goal.” 

 

With services occurring after crime has occurred, it does not appear that your program as proposed would 

provide a prevention service – rather it appears to be more fairly characterized as crime intervention. 

While we recognize the importance of the services you provide, we believe that the proposal does not 

meet the mandatory requirements regarding public safety and crime prevention. Also, it doesn’t appear 

that you are proposing a new program or the substantial expansion of an existing program. 

 

We appreciate you taking the time to submit an application for funding, and encourage you to apply again 

in the future should you have a proposal that fully meets the requirements of this Initiative. It is our hope 

that you will be able to obtain financial support from other sources and wish you well in the progress with 

your project. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 
     

Jerome Delvin, District 1 

Commissioner 

 Shon Small, District 2 

Commissioner (Chairman) 

 James Beaver, District 3 

Commissioner 

 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us


 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: December 6, 2016 

Subject: Declination Letters for PST 

Gang & Crime Prevention RFP 

applicants 

Prepared by: Shyanne Faulconer 

Reviewed by:  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract         

Pass Resolution             

Pass Ordinance              

Pass Motion    

None   X 

 
 

 

Consent Agenda     X 

Public Hearing             

1st Discussion             

2nd Discussion             

Other              

 

SUMMARY 

Benton County would like to send formal declination letters to two (2) of the 2017-2018 Gang & Crime Prevention 

Initiative RFP applicants for failure to meet requirement of having “gang-related and other crime prevention as a 

central goal” and “an evidence-based approach to this goal” along with other issues and concerns (as addressed in 

the letters). 

 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Benton Franklin Legal Aid Society – Volunteer Lawyer Program: 

This program, as proposed, appears to have services occurring after crime has occurred, thus more fairly 

characterized as intervention not prevention. The program also does not appear to be a new program or 

substantial expansion to the existing services provided by this organization. 

 

Benton Franklin Health District – Harm Reduction Needle Exchange Program: 

This program, as proposed, does not meet the requirement for gang-related and other crime prevention, but 

seems to be better characterized has a public health concern, which, while important, is not the intention of 

the Initiative. The program also addresses an extremely controversial topic in our community, without 

providing clear recommendation on how to combat negative public perception while also appearing to not 

have a direct correlation to gang and crime prevention. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve proposed declination letters by signing all copies where indicated. 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

No fiscal impact. 

 

WEH
Text Box
eee. Letter to Benton Franklin Health District for Gang & Crime Prevention Initiative



 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

     

  

 
December 6, 2016 

 

Benton Franklin Health District 

7102 W. Okanogan Place 

Kennewick, WA 99336 

 

 

Dear Mr. Zaccaria, 

 

Thank you for submitting your application to be considered for funding from the Benton County Gang 

and Crime Prevention Initiative.  

 

The current Request for Proposals was met with numerous applications during its cycle, and unfortunately 

we are unable to fund every project requesting support. 

 

We regret to inform you that the review committee for the Benton County Gang and Crime Prevention 

Initiative has denied your proposal, on the grounds that the program fails to meet the key purpose of the 

Initiative as outlined in the 2014 ballot proposition.  

 

As drafted and proposed, your program does not meet the mandatory requirement that all programs “must 

have gang-related and other crime prevention as a central goal, must use an evidence-based approach to 

this goal, and must have specific, measurable, meaningful, and community-significant performance 

measures related to this goal.”  

 

Your proposed program addresses an extremely controversial topic in our community, and does not 

appear to have a clear nexus with the prevention of crime and gang activity. Specifically, instead of gang 

and crime prevention, your program appears to have public health as a main focus which, while 

important, is not the intention of this Initiative. 

 

We appreciate you taking the time to submit an application for funding, and encourage you to apply again 

in the future should you have a proposal that fully meets the requirements of this Initiative. It is our hope 

that you will be able to obtain financial support from other sources, and wish you well in the progress 

with your project. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 
     

Jerome Delvin, District 1 

Commissioner 

 Shon Small, District 2 

Commissioner (Chairman) 

 James Beaver, District 3 

Commissioner 

 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us


 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:  12/6/2016       
Subject: Public Works 

Organizational 
Chart Update 

Prepared by:       MSR        
Reviewed by:                  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  __XX_  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda            

__XX___  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            ____ _ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Recent departure of staff has presented an opportunity to reorganize the Department to reduce costs and increase 
efficiency.  The Chief Financial Officer position is now vacant and will not be filled at this time.  There is still a need for 
a higher level administrative position.  The existing classification of Administrative Assistant will suit the needs of the 
Road Department.  The updated organizational chart adds a new administrative assistant (grade 15) and removes the 
Chief Financial Officer (grade 17) 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The Road Department is making organizational changes as follows: 
 
Chief Financial Officer (NB 17) – Vacant 
 
Administrative Assistant (NB 15) – Added 
 
Overall the changes result in a net decrease in salary and benefit expenditures for the Department. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the Board approve the new Organizational Chart for the Road Department. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The above changes will result in an annual cost savings in salaries and benefits of approximately $6,000 per year. 
 
MOTION 
 
Approve as part of the consent agenda. 

WEH
Text Box
fff. Public Works Organizational Chart Update



Original: Road Department        M. Rasmussen 
 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY 
WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE UPDATED BENTON COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT 
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 
 
WHEREAS, the recent departure of a staff member has presented an opportunity to restructure 
the Department to improve efficiency and reduce costs, and, 
 
WHEREAS, the County Engineer has determined that the Chief Financial Officer (Grade 17) 
position should not be filled, and, 
 
WHEREAS, the County has an existing Classification of Administrative Assistant that will meet 
the needs of the Road Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the County Engineer has determined that a new position of Administrative 
Assistant (Grade 15) is necessary to complete the mission of the Department and should be 
created, and, 
 
WHEREAS, a revised organizational chart has been prepared reflecting these changes; NOW 
THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the revised Road Department Organizational Chart, attached, be hereby 
approved; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Benton County Commissioners retains the right 
to modify or repeal this determination at their discretion and without prior notification; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution is not intended nor shall be interpreted as 
limiting or compromising the County’s “at will” employer status; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that at the recommendation of the County Engineer the County 
Administrator has the authority to move employees who possess a Professional Engineers 
License (P.E.) up to two (2) grades higher than the established grade for their position; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the position of Administrative Assistant (Grade 15) be 
created. 
 
Dated this 6th day of December 2016. 

Chairman of the Board 

Chairman Pro-Tem 

Member 

Constituting the Board of County 
Commissioners of Benton County, 

Washington Clerk of the Board 
Attest: 





WEH
Text Box
ggg. Adoption of 2017 Annual Road Program













WEH
Text Box
hhh. Purchase of 2010 Freightliner Cascadia Cab from Jim’s Pacific Garages, Inc.











WEH
Text Box
iii. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0501-101, Dept. 650; Rescinding Resolution 2016-915







WEH
Text Box
jjj. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500







WEH
Text Box
kkk. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500





WEH
Text Box
lll. Accepting Work Performed by Granite Construction Co. for Locust Grove Road Asphalt



WEH
Text Box
mmm. Contract w/Co-Energy for Gasoline & Diesel Fuel

























WEH
Text Box
nnn. Purchase of TrafficJet Print System from Avery Dennison















WEH
Text Box
ooo. Contract w/Jack’s Superior Auto Body LLC for Automobile Body Repair































WEH
Text Box
ppp. Contract w/Mathews Auto Body for Automobile Body Repair































WEH
Text Box
qqq. Contract w/Mel’s Inter City Collision for Automobile Body Repair































WEH
Text Box
rrr. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120







 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: December 6, 2016       
Subject: Contract Amendment w/ 

Consolidated Food 
Management 

Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  

                 

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _X   _ 
Pass Resolution  _X___  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           _X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
The Benton County Sheriff’s Office solicited a Request for Qualifications and Proposals for Corrections 
Food Services from three (3) companies with the following results based on three meals a day for an 
average of 500 inmates for a two year contract:    
  

 Aramark, Downers Grove, IL- $1,371,487.50 
 Consolidated Food Management, Inc. Tukwila, WA - $1,401,600.00 
 Trinity Services Group, Oldsmar, FL - $1,646,880.00  

 
The proposals were reviewed by representatives of the Sheriff’s Office and though Aramark came in as 
the lowest bidder, there are some concerning factors regarding their food services, so based on the 
proposals provided, pricing, and company history, the Sheriff’s Office recommends entering into a two (2) 
year contract with Consolidated Food Management, Inc., Tukwila, WA (CFM) for a contract amount not to 
exceed $1,753,557.00. 
 
Exhibits B and C that are referenced in the attached contract is not attached, as the document is too large 
to send electronically.  However, a copy can be obtained upon request.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and Personal Service Contract between Benton County and 
Consolidated Food Management, Inc. for a two year contract for an amount not to exceed $1,753,557. 
 
PA APPROVAL 
 
Reviewed and approved by Ryan Lukson. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The total amount payable to CFM for calendar year 2017 & 2018 shall be in accordance with prices in 
Exhibit A attached hereto for an overall contract amount not to exceed $1,753,557.  Said expenditures 
was included in the 2017-2018 budget process.    
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
sss. Contract w/Consolidated Food Management, Inc. for Corrections Food Services



Orig:   Sheriff’s Office 
cc: Auditor, S. Araiza, CFM  

Prepared by:  L. Small 

 RESOLUTION 

  
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 
IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING THE PERSONAL SERVICE CONTRACT TO CONSOLIDATED 

FOOD MANAGEMENT, INC. FOR CORRECTIONS FOOD SERVICES LOCATED AT THE 

BENTON COUNTY JAIL, KENNEWICK, WA 
 
WHEREAS, per resolution 2012-677, “…that for all contracts for non-public works services the 
county need not advertise or follow a formal competitive bidding procedure, but shall instead evaluate 
and utilize the procedures it deems best under the individual circumstances in order to obtain 
services of the highest quality at the lowest cost.”; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Sheriff’s Office solicited a Request for Qualifications and Proposals 
for Corrections Food Services from three (3) companies with the following results based on three 
meals a day for an average of 500 inmates for a two (2) year contract:    
  

 Aramark, Downers Grove, IL- $1,371,487.50 
 Consolidated Food Management, Inc. Tukwila, WA - $1,401,600.00 
 Trinity Services Group, Oldsmar, FL - $1,646,880.00  

 

; and  
 

WHEREAS, the proposals were reviewed by representatives of the Sheriff’s Office and based on the 
proposals provided, pricing, and company history the Sheriff’s Office recommends entering into a 
two (2) year contract with Consolidated Food Management, Inc., Tukwila, WA; and  
 
WHEREAS, Consolidated Food Management shall be paid in accordance with the inmate population 
and cost per meal outlined in Exhibit A attached to the Contract for calendar years 2017 and 2018; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, all religious and vegan/vegetarian meals shall be provided at no extra charge for up to 
10% of the jail population. If religious and vegan/vegetarian meals exceed 10% of the population, 
the County will be charged an additional $0.15 cents per regular meal cost for each religious and 
vegan/vegetarian meal; NOW, THEREFORE  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, 
the Board concurs with the recommendation and hereby awards the personal service contract to 
Consolidated Food Management, Inc. for a contract amount not to exceed $1,753,557.00; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board authorizes the Chairman to sign the attached Personal 
Service Contract between Benton County and Consolidated Food Management, Inc.; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, said contract shall commence January 1, 2017 and shall terminate 
December 31, 2018.  Upon agreement of both parties, this contract may be continued for up to two 
(2) two-year renewal options subject to agreement between both parties regarding cost adjustments.  
Price adjustments and extensions of this contract will only be approved with an amendment to 
attached contract. The County reserves the right to compare prices to ensure that the County is 
getting the best possible value for the services provided under an awarded contract.  
 
 
 
 
 



Orig:   Sheriff’s Office 
cc: Auditor, S. Araiza, CFM  

Prepared by:  L. Small 

 
Dated this _______ day of _______________, 2016. 

______________________________                      
 Chairman of the Board 

  
 ______________________________                     
 Member 

 
 ______________________________                      
 Member 

  Constituting the Board of Commissioners 
of Benton County, Washington. 

Attest____________________________________ 
         Clerk of the Board  



 

 

 
 

 
INSTITUTIONAL FOOD SERVICE CONTRACT  

TERMS AND CONDITIONS  
 

 

This Contract is made and entered into by and between BENTON COUNTY, a political 
subdivision of the State of Washington, with its principal offices at 620 Market Street, Prosser, 
WA 99350 (hereinafter “COUNTY” OR “BCC”), and  CONSOLIDATED FOOD MANAGEMENT, 
INC. a Washington corporation with its principal offices at 565 Andover Park, Suite 115, Tukwila, 
WA 98188 (hereinafter “CONTRACTOR”).   
 
1.  CONTRACT DOCUMENTS:   
  
 1. Contract Terms and Conditions (this document) 
 2. Exhibit A – 2017-2018 Pricing for Meals  
 3. Exhibit B – The COUNTY’s RFP dated October 19, 2016 and all documents 

 submitted or received by CONTRACTOR dated November 4, 2016  
4. Exhibit C – Background Check Form 

 
In the case of any inconsistency or conflict between any of the above referenced contract 
documents, the Contract Terms and Conditions shall govern over the remaining contract 
documents. 
 
2. CONTRACT PERIOD:  Contract period shall commence January 1, 2017, and shall 
 terminate December 31, 2018.  Upon agreement of both parties this contract may be 
 continued for up to two (2) two-year renewal options subject to agreement between both 
 parties regarding cost adjustments.  Cost adjustments for renewal options must be 
 submitted by July 31st of every year.   
 
3. ADVERTISING:  Award of a contract does not grant the right to the CONTRACTOR to 
 utilize the award in any advertising media; nor may the COUNTY or any COUNTY official 
 or employee endorse a product or service covered by this Contract. 
 
4. TERMINATION: The COUNTY may terminate this Contract in whole or in part whenever 

the COUNTY determines, in its sole discretion that such termination is in the best interests 
of the COUNTY. The COUNTY may terminate this Contract upon giving sixty (60) days 
written notice by certified mail to the CONTRACTOR. In that event, the COUNTY shall 
pay the CONTRACTOR for all cost incurred by the CONTRACTOR in performing the 
Contract up to the date of such notice. Payment shall be made in accordance with the 
Compensation Section of this Contract. 

 
In the event that funding for this project is withdrawn, reduced or limited in any way after 
the effective date of this Contract, the COUNTY may summarily terminate this Contract 
notwithstanding any other termination provision in this Contract. Termination under this 
paragraph shall be effective upon the date specified in the written notice of termination 
sent by COUNTY to the CONTRACTOR. After the effective date, no charges incurred 



 

 

 
 

under this Contract shall be allowed. 
 

If the CONTRACTOR breaches any of its obligations hereunder, and fails to cure the 
breach within ten (10) days of written notice to do so by the COUNTY, the COUNTY may 
immediately terminate this Contract by so notifying the CONTRACTOR, in which case the 
COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR only for the costs of services accepted by the 
COUNTY, in accordance with the Compensation Section of this Contract. Upon such 
termination, the COUNTY, at its discretion, may obtain performance of the work 
elsewhere, and the CONTRACTOR shall bear all costs and expenses incurred by the 
COUNTY in completing the work and all damage sustained by the COUNTY by reason of 
the CONTRACTOR'S breach. 
 
The CONTRACTOR may terminate this Contract in whole or in part whenever the 
CONTRACTOR determines, in its sole discretion, that such termination is in the best 
interests of the CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR may terminate this Contract upon 
giving one hundred twenty (120) days written notice by certified mail to the COUNTY.  In 
that event, the COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR for all costs incurred by the 
CONTRACTOR in performing the Contract up to the date of such notice. Payment shall 
be made in accordance with Section 31, Compensation.  Nothing in this section shall limit 
the rights of the COUNTY pursuant to this agreement or by law. 
 

5. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 

A. The CONTRACTOR'S services shall be furnished by the CONTRACTOR as an 
independent contractor and not as an agent, employee or servant of the COUNTY. 
The CONTRACTOR specifically has the right to direct and control 
CONTRACTOR'S own activities in providing the agreed services in accordance 
with the specifications set out in this Contract. 

 
B. The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the entire compensation for this Contract 

is set forth in Section 31 of this Contract, and neither the CONTRACTOR nor its 
employees are entitled to any COUNTY benefits, including, but not limited to: 
vacation pay, holiday pay, sick leave pay, medical, dental, or other insurance 
benefits, fringe benefits, or any other rights or privileges afforded to COUNTY 
employees. 

 
C. The CONTRACTOR shall have and maintain complete responsibility and control 

over all of its subcontractors, employees, agents, and representatives. No 
subcontractor, employee, agent, or representative of the CONTRACTOR shall be 
or deem to be or act or purport to act as an employee, agent, or representative of 
the COUNTY. 

 
D. CONTRACTOR shall pay for all taxes, fees, licenses, or payments required by 

federal, state or local law which are now or may be enacted during the term of this 
Contract. 

 
E. The CONTRACTOR agrees to immediately remove any of its employees or agents 



 

 

 
 

from their assignment to perform services under this Contract upon receipt of a 
written request to do so from the COUNTY'S contract representative or designee. 

 
6. ASSIGNMENT, DELEGATION AND SUBCONTRACTING 
 

A.  The CONTRACTOR shall perform the terms of this Contract using only its bona 
fide employees or agents, and the obligations and duties of the CONTRACTOR 
under this Contract shall not be assigned, delegated, or subcontracted to any other 
person or firm without the prior express written consent of the COUNTY. 

 
B. The CONTRACTOR warrants that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any 

company, person, partnership, or firm, other than a bona fide employee working 
exclusively for CONTRACTOR, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, 
gift, or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making 
of this Contract. 

 
7. INFRINGEMENTS:  CONTRACTOR agrees to defend, protect and hold harmless the 
 COUNTY, its elected and appointed officials, employees, agents and representatives 
 against all claims, suits, actions or proceedings ordered and to assume all expenses 
 and damages, including attorney’s fees and costs arising from any claims  regarding 
 infringement of any third-party’s rights.  This term shall survive the termination or 
 expiration of this Contract and shall remain in force for five years from the date of such 
 termination or expiration.  
 
8.  WARRANTIES:  CONTRACTOR warrants that the food services and all other items 
 supplied pursuant to this Contract conform to the COUNTY specifications as stated herein 
 and are fit for the purpose for which such service/product is intended if any are ordinarily 
 employed, except that if a particular purpose is stated the service/product must then be fit 
 for the particular purpose. 
  

9.  NON WAIVER BY ACCEPTANCE OF VARIATION:  No Contract provisions or COUNTY 
right under this Contract or by law are waived by acceptance of or failure to  object to any 
act or omission which is not in conformance with this Contract or is in breach thereto.  

 
10.  ASSIGNMENTS:  The CONTRACTOR shall perform the terms of this Contract using only 

its bona fide employees or agents, and the obligations and duties of the CONTRACTOR 
under this Contract shall not be assigned, delegated, or subcontracted to any other person 
or firm without the prior express written consent of the COUNTY. 

 
The CONTRACTOR warrants that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any company, 
person, partnership, or firm, other than a bona fide employee working exclusively for 
CONTRACTOR, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or other 
consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Contract. 

         
11.  TAXES:  CONTRACTOR shall collect and pay all federal, state and local taxes, if any, 
 and charges arising from any purchase hereunder. COUNTY agrees to pay 
 CONTRACTOR’S B&O tax, excluding all applicable deductions, for services performed 



 

 

 
 

 hereunder at the current Washington State rate of 1.5%, or as amended by the State 
 throughout the term of this Contract.  
 
12.  HOLD HARMLESS and INDEMNIFICATION: The CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, 
 indemnify and defend the COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees and agents, from and 
 against any and all claims, actions, suits, liability, loss, expenses, damages, and 
 judgments of any nature whatsoever, including reasonable costs and attorneys' fees in 
 defense thereof, for injury, sickness, disability or death to persons or damage to property 
 or business, which are caused in whole or in part by any act or omission, negligent or 
 otherwise, of CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors, arise in connection with the work 
 performed under this Contract, or are caused or occasioned in whole or in part by reason 
 of the presence of the CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors or their property upon or in 
 the proximity of the property of the COUNTY.  PROVIDED, that the CONTRACTOR'S 
 obligation hereunder shall not extend to injury, sickness, death or damage caused by or 
 arising out of the sole negligence of the COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees or 
 agents. 
 

In any and all claims against the COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees and agents by 
any employee of the CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the 
indemnification obligation under this Section shall not be limited in any way by any 
limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for 
the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor under Workers Compensation acts, disability benefit 
acts, or other employee benefit acts, it being clearly agreed and understood by the parties 
hereto that the CONTRACTOR expressly waives any immunity the CONTRACTOR might 
have had under such laws.  By executing this Contract, the CONTRACTOR 
acknowledges that the foregoing waiver has been mutually negotiated by the 
parties and that the provisions of this Section shall be incorporated, as relevant, 
into any contract the CONTRACTOR makes with any subcontractor or agent 
performing work hereunder. CONTRACTOR’S obligations under this Section 10 
shall survive termination and expiration of this Contract.  
 
The CONTRACTOR’S obligations hereunder shall include, but are not limited to, 
investigating, adjusting and defending all claims alleging loss from action, error or 
omission, or breach of any common law, statutory or other delegated duty by the 
CONTRACTOR, the CONTRACTOR’S employees, agents or subcontractors.  
 

13.   INSURANCE:   
  

A. Workers Compensation:  CONTRACTOR shall comply with all State of 
Washington workers compensation statutes and regulations.  Prior to the start of 
work under this Contract, workers compensation coverage shall be provided for all 
employees of CONTRACTOR and employees of any subcontractor or sub-
subcontractor.  Coverage shall include bodily injury (including death) by accident 
or disease, which arises out of or in connection with the performance of this 
Contract.  CONTRACTOR shall submit a copy of its certificate of coverage from 
the Department of Labor and Industries prior to commencement of work. Except 



 

 

 
 

as prohibited by law, CONTRACTOR waives all rights of subrogation against the 
COUNTY for recovery of damages to the extent they are covered by workers 
compensation, employers liability, commercial liability or commercial umbrella 
liability insurance. 

 
 If CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, or sub-subcontractor fails to comply with all 

State of Washington workers compensation statutes and regulations and 
COUNTY incurs fines or is required by law to provide benefits to or obtain coverage 
for such employees, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify the COUNTY.  Indemnity 
shall include all fines, payment of benefits to CONTRACTOR or subcontractor 
employees, or their heirs or legal representatives, and the cost of effecting 
coverage on behalf of such employees.  Any amount owed to COUNTY by 
CONTRACTOR pursuant to the indemnity agreement may be deducted from any 
payments owed by COUNTY to CONTRACTOR for performance of this Contract.   

 
B. Commercial General Liability and Employers Liability Insurance:  Prior to the 

start of work under this Contract, CONTRACTOR shall maintain commercial 
general liability coverage (policy form CG0001 or equivalent) to protect the 
CONTRACTOR from claims for wrongful death, bodily injury, personal injury and 
property damage, which may arise from any actions or inactions under this 
Contract by CONTRACTOR or by anyone directly employed by or contracting with 
CONTRACTOR.   The minimum commercial general liability insurance limits shall 
be as follows: 

 
 $2,000,000 General Aggregate 
 $2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 
 $1,000,000 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 
 $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
 

The commercial general liability policy will contain an endorsement naming the 
COUNTY, its elected and appointed officials, employees and agents as an 
Additional Insured and an endorsement that specifically states that 
CONTRACTOR’S commercial general liability policy shall be primary, and not 
contributory, with any other insurance maintained by the COUNTY. 

 
The CONTRACTOR will provide commercial general liability coverage that does 
not exclude any activity to be performed in fulfillment of this Contract and does not 
exclude liability pursuant to the indemnification requirement under Section 12.  
CONTRACTOR'S commercial general liability policy shall provide cross liability 
coverage, indicating essentially that except with respect to the limits of insurance 
and any rights or duties specifically assigned in this coverage part to the first 
named insured, this insurance applies as if each named insured were the only 
named insured, and separately to each insured against whom claims are made or 
suit is brought. 
 
CONTRACTOR shall also provide Stop Gap Employer's Liability Insurance 
coverage with minimum limits as follows: 



 

 

 
 

 
$1,000,000 Each Accident 
$1,000,000 Policy Limit for Disease 
$1,000,000 Each Employee for Disease 

 
C. Automobile Liability:  The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, during the life of this 

Contract, Automobile Liability Insurance (ISO Form Number CA0001 or 
equivalent) covering any auto (Symbol 1), or if the CONTRACTOR has no owned 
autos, hired (Symbol 8) and non-owned autos (Symbol 9), in the amount of not 
less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per accident for Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage to protect CONTRACTOR from claims which may arise from the 
performance of this Contract, whether such operations be by the CONTRACTOR 
or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by the CONTRACTOR.   

 
D. Other Insurance Provisions: 
 

1. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance provisions shall be primary with 
respect to any insurance or self-insurance programs covering the COUNTY, 
its elected and appointed officers, officials, employees and agents. 
CONTRACTOR’S liability insurance policies must be endorsed to show this 
primary coverage.  Any insurance, self-insured retention, deductible or risk 
retention maintained or participated in by the COUNTY  shall be excess and 
not contributory to CONTRACTOR’S insurance  policies. 

 
2.  The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance policies shall contain no special 

limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the COUNTY as an additional 
insured.  

  
3. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect 

coverage provided to the COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees or agents.  
 
4. The CONTRACTOR'S insurance shall apply separately to each insured 

against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits 
of the insurer's liability.  

 
5. The CONTRACTOR shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its 

policies or shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each 
subcontractor. All coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the 
requirements stated herein.  

 
6. The insurance limits mandated for any insurance coverage required by this 

Contract are not intended to be an indication of exposure nor are they 
limitations on indemnification. If the CONTRACTOR maintains higher limits 
than the minimums required in this contract, the COUNTY shall be 
entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the 
CONTRACTOR. 

 



 

 

 
 

7. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all required policies in force from the time 
services commence until services are completed.  Certificates, policies, and 
endorsements expiring before completion of services shall be promptly 
replaced. All liability insurance required under this Contract shall be written on 
an Occurrence Policy form.  

  
8.  CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to waive subrogation with respect to each 

insurance policy maintained under this Contract.  When required by an insurer, 
or if a policy condition does not permit CONTRACTOR to enter into a pre-loss 
agreement to waive subrogation without an endorsement, then 
CONTRACTOR agrees to notify the insurer and obtain such endorsement.  
This requirement shall not apply to any policy which includes a condition 
expressly prohibiting waiver of subrogation by the insured or which voids 
coverage should the CONTRACTOR enter into such a waiver of subrogation 
on a pre-loss basis.  

 
9.  Compensation and/or payments due to CONTRACTOR under this Agreement 

are expressly conditioned upon CONTRACTOR’S strict compliance with all 
insurance requirements.  Payment to CONTRACTOR may be suspended in 
the event of non-compliance.  Upon receipt of evidence of CONTRACTOR’S 
compliance, such payments not otherwise subject to withholding or set-off will 
be released to CONTRACTOR. 

 
E. Verification of Coverage and Acceptability of Insurers:  All insurance required 

under this Contract shall be issued by companies authorized to do business under 
the laws of the State of Washington and have a A. M. Best's rating of at least A-
VII or better in the most recently published edition of Best’s Reports.  Any exception 
to this requirement must be reviewed and approved in writing by the Benton 
County Risk Manager.  If an insurer is not admitted to do business within 
Washington State, all insurance policies and procedures for issuing the insurance 
policy must comply with Chapter 48.15 RCW and 284-15 WAC.  

  
1. All insurance to be maintained by the CONTRACTOR, other than Professional 

Liability, Auto Liability and Workmen’s Compensation, shall specifically include 
the COUNTY, its elected officials, employees and volunteers as an “Additional 
Insured” by way of endorsement and shall not be reduced or canceled without 
thirty (30) days written prior notice to the COUNTY.  Any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by the COUNTY, its elected and appointed officials, 
employees and agents shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR’S insurance and 
shall not contribute to it.   

 
2. Certificates of Liability Insurance, with endorsements attached, are to be 

provided to the COUNTY’s Contract Representative referenced in Section 
34.a. 

  
3. All written notices under this Section 13 and notice of cancellation or change 

of required insurance coverages shall be mailed to the COUNTY’s Contract 



 

 

 
 

Representative referenced in Section 34.a.  
 
4. The CONTRACTOR or its broker shall provide a copy of any and all insurance 

policies specified in this Contract upon request of the Benton County Risk 
Manager at the following address:  Benton County Risk Manager, 7122 W. 
Okanogan Place, Bldg. A, Kennewick, WA 99336   

    
14. NON-DISCRIMINATION AND AFFIRMATIVE ACTION:  CONTRACTOR agrees not to 
 discriminate against any person in the performance of any of its obligations hereunder 
 on the basis of race, religion, creed, color, national origin, sex, marital status,
 veteran status, the presence of any disabilities, or any other protected status.    
 
15. DISPUTES:  Disputes between the CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY, arising under and 

by virtue of this Contract, shall be brought to the attention of the COUNTY at the earliest 
possible time in order that such matters may be settled or other appropriate action 
promptly taken. Any dispute relating to the quality or acceptability of performance and/or 
compensation due the CONTRACTOR shall be decided by the COUNTY'S Contract 
Representative or designee. All rulings, orders, instructions and decisions of the 
COUNTY'S Contract Representative shall be final and conclusive, subject to 
CONTRACTOR'S right to seek judicial relief. 

  
16. CONFIDENTIALITY: The CONTRACTOR, its employees, subcontractors, and their 

employees shall maintain the confidentiality of all information provided by the COUNTY or 
acquired by the COUNTY in performance of this Contract, except upon the prior written 
consent of the COUNTY or an order entered by a court of competent jurisdiction. The 
CONTRACTOR shall promptly give the COUNTY written notice of any judicial proceeding 
seeking disclosure of such information. 

 
17. GOVERNING LAW; VENUE:   This Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State 

of Washington.  Any lawsuit arising out of this agreement shall be brought in the Superior 
Court of the State of Washington for Benton County. 

 
18. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  The COUNTY, to the extent permitted by law, and the 

CONTRACTOR each bind themselves, their partners, successors, executors, 
administrators, and assigns to the other party to this Contract and to the partners, 
successors, administrators, and assigns of such other party in respect to all covenants to 
this Contract. 

 
19.   LICENSING AND PERMITS:  CONTRACTOR must be properly licensed to do business 
 in the State of Washington. CONTRACTOR must have and maintain all local permits 
 and/or licensing that are or may be required.   
 
20.   PAYMENT TERMS: The COUNTY will pay the CONTRACTOR within twenty days from 
 receipt of a weekly bill from the CONTRACTOR that contains the following information: 

 
 The previous week food service with the number and classification of meals prepared 
 and served to:  



 

 

 
 

 
A. Detainees 
B. Staff meals served (breakfast, lunch and dinner) 
C. Regular meals served (breakfast, lunch and dinner) 
D. Sack meals served 
E. Special diet meals served (vegan, vegetarian, religious, etc.) 
F. Medical diet meals served 
G. Auxiliary Food Services (prior written authorization and separate billing required) 
H. Rate per meal 
I. Subtotal for each section 
J. Taxes, if any, provided pursuant to this Contract 
K. Grand total owing 

 
 The COUNTY will not pay for any spoiled and/or unconsumed meals that are prepared in 
 excess of the counts provided from Master Control, or which do not meet the specifications 
 of this Contract.   
 
21.   COMPUTER EQUIPMENT: The CONTRACTOR shall furnish all computer hardware and 
 software (“computer equipment”) to fulfill its duties and obligations pursuant to this 
 Contract at no expense to the COUNTY.   
 

All hardware and software provided pursuant to this Contract are the property of the 
CONTRACTOR.   
 

22.   CHANGES:  No alterations in any terms and conditions of this Contract will be effective 
without written consent of the COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

 
23.   HANDLING AND SHIPPING:  No additional charges will be allowed for shipping or 
 handling for orders or order shortages. 
 
24.   DELIVERY: The CONTRACTOR must give BCC prior notification of all merchandise 

deliveries, so arrangements can be made for unloading the truck.  
 
25.   SHIPPING INSTRUCTIONS: Unless otherwise specified, all shipments of merchandise 
 will be made F.O.B. at the following: 

 
Benton County Corrections  

  7122 W Okanogan Pl, Bldg. B 
  Kennewick, Washington   99336 
 
26. SEVERABILITY:  If any part of this Contract is declared void or illegal, all remaining 
 parts or terms of this Contract shall remain binding on all parties. 
 
27.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  The parties agree that this Contract is the complete expression 

of its terms and conditions. Any oral or written representations or understandings not 
incorporated in this Contract are specifically excluded. 

  



 

 

 
 

28. SURVIVABILITY 
 

All Contract terms, which by their context are clearly intended to survive the termination 
and/or expiration of this Contract, shall so survive 

 
29. MEAL SERVICE AND MENU REQUIREMENTS 
 
 A.        ESTIMATED DELIVERY REQUIREMENTS 
 

Meals for BCC adult and authorized staff shall follow a cycle menu of no less than 
28-days. Meal counts are estimated at 1,455 – 2,220 adult and staff meals three 
times a day or from 10,185 – 15,540 meals per week. "A Menu Planner" shall be 
maintained in the immediate kitchen area located just outside of the kitchen office. 
It is anticipated that the projected population levels and meal requirements will 
remain as projected during the initial or any subsequent contract years. 

 
 B. MENUS 
 

A 28-day cycle menu is required and the meal planning option for breakfast, lunch 
and dinner used by the CONTRACTOR will be the Traditional Food-Based Menu 
Planning.  A no less than two-week menu for sack meals must be presented as 
well. Accompanying each menu must be a list of nutritionally equivalent 
substitutions in the event one or more of the menu items is not available. This 
menu must meet or exceed both the COUNTY standards outlined herein and 
American Correctional Association (ACA) mandatory requirements for food service 
in accredited correctional facilities whichever is more stringent. 
 
All menu items shall meet all nutritional requirements established by and in 
accordance with Washington Administrative Codes (WAC), United States 
Department of Agriculture (USDA).  The intent is to serve high quality nutritious 
food items that will appeal to men and women. The menu must be assessed and 
periodically revised by a Registered Dietitian to successfully meet the dietary 
preferences. The menu composition intent is to provide as wide a variety of food 
items and appropriate size portions for adults, depending on their individual needs.  

 
 C. NUTRITION REQUIREMENTS 
 

1.  Menu Certification: Menus must be reviewed and certified by a Registered 
Dietitian and adjusted for age, sex and activity according to the RDA and RDI 
stated by the National Academy of Sciences. The menus must conform to the 
United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Dietary Guidelines for 
Americans relative to food composition, especially those relative to the amount 
of total fat and saturated fat (trans-fat free is preferable), calories, protein, iron, 
calcium, vitamin A, vitamin C, cholesterol, sodium and dietary fiber. The menus 
proposed must contain no more than 4,000 mg. sodium and no more than 30% 
calories from total fat (saturated fat is to be lower than or equal to 10% of total 
calories) averaged over the 7-day menu week. The CONTRACTOR must 



 

 

 
 

provide to the BCC written certification of this review for each cycle menu prior 
to implementation. The Registered Dietitian must, at a minimum, independently 
review and approve the menu bi-yearly.  Expenses for such review shall be 
borne by CONTRACTOR.  

 
 All meals served in the facility shall be hot meals unless an emergency 

circumstance exists that causes a deviation or the BCC has agreed in advance 
to a deviation from this requirement. 

 
 Sack meals will be provided, as required, to adults who spend part of their time 

outside the facility.  Facility supervision may request sack meals to be served 
in the facility for purposes of internal controls. 

 
 COUNTY will not pay for any meals that are spoiled or otherwise do not fulfill 

specifications. 
 
2. Documentation: Nutritional documentation for all of the breakfast, lunch and 

dinner menus is required. The format may vary with computer programs, but 
the data must meet the USDA nutrient requirements and recommendations. At 
a minimum, the analysis must provide weekly summaries and list all RDA 
vitamins and nutrients as well as total fat, saturated fat, cholesterol, sodium 
and fiber contents. CONTRACTOR shall submit the specified nutritional 
documentation and the USDA Food-Based breakfast, lunch and dinner menu 
pattern for any new and/or revised 28-day cycle menus with a Registered 
Dietitian's certification submitted for BCC’s approval. 

 
3. Daily Calorie Requirement: The minimum daily calorie requirement for the base 

BCC menu shall be 2,500. Only one standard size condiment package and one 
8 oz beverage may be applied to the caloric and nutritional content requirement 
by CONTRACTOR.  Any additions or changes to the menu by any authorized 
COUNTY agent, which shall increase the cost per meal, shall be agreed upon 
in writing by both parties.  

 
 D. PORTIONING 
 

All food portion sizes listed on the menus shall be the cooked weight or shall be 
specifically identified as raw weight. The meat and/or meat alternative portions in 
casserole or combination dishes must be listed. The contents for all sack meals 
must be clearly indicated by item and weight. All portions must be listed on the 
menus that are submitted in the proposal response. They must include the number 
and portion size of condiment packages. 
 
The hot and cold food portions of the meal are to be placed on the specified 
appropriate insulated trays and placed on tray carriers for transport to each 
housing pod. The CONTRACTOR may not place any hot or cold food in insulated 
containers until one-half hour before the specified cart pick-up time. Prior to those 
times the hot and cold food is to be held in equipment designed for this purpose. 



 

 

 
 

 
When there is a specific medical or religious diet ordered, the CONTRACTOR may 
place the specified portion in a styro-foam serving container and label that meal or 
item for receipt by a specified detainee. 

 
 E. THERAPEUTIC DIETS 
 

Therapeutic or restricted diets must be available upon medical authorization. 
Specific diets must be prepared and served to adults according to the orders of the 
attending physician, dentist, nurse or registered dietitian or as directed by the 
responsible health authority official. Medical diets and their menus will be 
developed and verified by a Registered Dietician. Therapeutic and restricted diets 
must be specific and complete and will be furnished in writing to the 
CONTRACTOR by authorized BCC or Contract personnel.   Restricted diets must 
conform as closely as possible to the food served to other inmates. The source 
book to be used is the Nutrition Care Manual with subscription update service 
(formerly the Manual of Clinical Dietetics Fifth Edition), published by the American 
Dietetic Association or comparable source that will be subject to the approval of 
the BCC. Medically prescribed food snacks must be served upon request at no 
additional cost. Medically prescribed dietary supplements must be provided as 
requested at cost and shall be available with four (4) hours notice. 

 
 F. RELIGIOUS & VEGAN / VEGETARIAN DIETS 
 

Religious and vegan/vegetarian diets must be available to be prepared and served 
according to the orders of the attending physician, dentist, nurse, registered 
dietitian or as directed by the responsible health authority official. Religious and 
vegan/vegetarian diets and their menus will be developed and verified by a 
Registered Dietitian and will be submitted in writing to the CONTRACTOR. 
Religious and vegan/vegetarian diets should be simple and conform as closely as 
possible to the food served to others. Contractor agrees to provide the said religious 
meals and vegan/vegetarian meals at no extra charge.   
 

 G. CONTINGENCY MEALS 
 

The CONTRACTOR may not charge additional fees for the provision of food 
services even in the event of lockdowns, riots, severe weather conditions, fire, 
power failure, labor strikes, ice storms, acts of God or other events that would 
cripple the normal operations of the BCC facility. At a minimum, the 
CONTRACTOR must maintain an on-premise inventory sufficient to prepare and 
serve three (3) days of scheduled meals. The CONTRACTOR shall submit a 
COUNTY approved contingency plan that will address this requirement within thirty 
(30) days of contract execution. 

 
H.         ACCOUNTING / AUDITING 

 
ACCOUNTING CYCLE: The CONTRACTOR must comply, for accounting cycle 



 

 

 
 

purposes, with the COUNTY’s fiscal year of January 1st to December 31st, and 
calendar month periods. 
 
RIGHT TO AUDIT: The COUNTY reserves the right to audit any aspect of its food 
service program, as performed by the CONTRACTOR, and CONTRACTOR will 
keep accurate and complete records thereof for at least three (3) years. 
 

30.        FOOD PRODUCTION, PREPARATION AND SERVICE      
 

A. QUALITY ASSURANCE 
 
The CONTRACTOR must maintain a comprehensive quality assurance program 
that implements Hazard Analysis Critical Control Points (HACCP) based on USDA 
Guidance. 
 
HACCP is the delivery of safe food by controlling hazards (biological, chemical, 
and/or physical) that may occur or be introduced into foods along the flow of food 
during receiving, storing, preparing, cooking, cooling, reheating, holding, 
assembling, packaging, transporting and serving. If the CONTRACTOR has a 
HACCP program that addresses, but is not limited to the purchase, delivery, 
storage, preparation, portioning and delivery of food as well as facility and 
equipment sanitation and staff food handling practices, this HACCP program may 
be submitted to the COUNTY for approval. 
 
Records must be filed in an orderly, chronological fashion to permit easy access 
and audit by the respective Food Service Contract Administrators. The 
CONTRACTOR must arrange for and have a minimum of two Food Safety 
Inspections each year by the local County Health Inspector. The CONTRACTOR 
must post their food safety inspections and must give members of the public copies 
of their food safety inspections if requested. 
 
CONTRACTOR shall ensure health permit for kitchen facility. BCC may monitor 
food service operations of CONTRACTOR through periodic visits, which may 
include other appropriate County and State personnel.  Meals provided by 
CONTRACTOR shall be prepared, put on trays and trays put on carts for transport 
to the detention pods by BCC staff, and shall be maintained at their required 
temperatures and precautions taken for control and prevention of food-borne 
illness.  CONTRACTOR shall keep all required daily storage, temperature, and 
other production records.   
 
All foods used by CONTRACTOR shall meet USDA standards of quality, sanitation 
and safety, applying to foods that are processed commercially and purchased by 
the program.  COUNTY shall retain control of the quality, extent, and general 
nature of its food service. 
 
All food and supplies purchased for use under the final contract with the COUNTY 
by the CONTRACTOR as agent for the COUNTY correctional food services and 



 

 

 
 

supplies program shall meet at least the following minimum specifications: 
 

1. Beef, veal, pork and lamb shall be of at least USDA Good.   The fat and/or soy 
content of all ground meat products to be used cannot be in excess of 20% 
and 6% respectively.   All breaded products must have a product weight of 3 
oz. before breading. 

 
2. Poultry shall be at least USDA Grade B. Chicken quarters can be no less   

than 8 oz. raw weight.  Legs or thighs must be 6 oz. minimum raw weight. All 
breaded products must have a product weight of 3 oz. before breading. 

 
3. Canned fruits and vegetables shall be at least USDA Grade C (or standard). 
 
4. Frozen fruits and vegetables shall be at least USDA Grade B. 
 
5. Fresh produce shall be at least USDA No. 2. Some minimum counts are as 

follows: 
 

a. Apples  113 
b. Oranges 113 
c. Bananas 3-4 (petite) 
d. Pears  90-100 

 
The CONTRACTOR may serve comparable portions of other popular fresh 
fruits. 

 
6. Dairy products shall be at least USDA Grade A. (Butter may be substituted for 

margarine if it is a commodity item.) 2% skim and nonfat chocolate fresh, fluid 
milk fortified with Vitamins A and D shall be served at breakfast, lunch and 
dinner and snacks if applicable. Dry/powdered milk may be used in 
cooking/baking. 

 
 Eggs shall be at least USDA Grade B Large. 

 
7. Frozen fish and seafood must be a nationally distributed brand, packed under 

continuous government inspection.    All breaded products must have a product 
weight of 3 oz before breading. 

 
8. Bakery products - A minimum of 60 percent whole-grain products must be 

used.   As long as they are within their "sell-by" dates, day-old breads may be 
purchased, but must be used within 48 hours or frozen until the time of use 
(seven day maximum hold). 

 
9. The CONTRACTOR may not purchase "second market" or distressed food 

items, or food items outside of the specifications stated herein without the prior 
written approval of COUNTY.  

 



 

 

 
 

B. STORAGE 
 

The CONTRACTOR must provide for the correct receiving, prompt storage, 
rotation and issue of food items purchased for use in the BCC.  Products that have 
been frozen in excess of one year or are past the manufacturers or processors pull 
or freshness expiration date may not be served. All food products must be marked 
with a date when they were received and stored on a first-in-first-out (FIFO) 
rotation basis. 

 
 C. INVENTORY 
 

The CONTRACTOR shall be the sole agent for purchasing food and supplies 
under this contract.  For the purpose of maintaining a regular supply of fresh foods 
and for cost control and accurate reporting purposes, the CONTRACTOR shall 
conduct physical inventories of all food and supply items.  
 
All products required to serve the published menu will be on hand at the BCC 
kitchen location in time to properly prepare the food.  The CONTRACTOR shall 
keep on hand sufficient food products as to be able to prepare and serve a 
minimum of three days of meal and snack service.  

 
 D. PRODUCTION CONTROL TECHNIQUES 
 

The food production techniques and hold methods used in the BCC facility must 
be in accordance with all applicable health and sanitation mandates. It is the 
specific responsibility of the CONTRACTOR to accurately maintain its food 
production records (whether manual or computer software driven) to conclusively 
prove that all food items are being prepared in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of the Contract. 
 
Sulfites: No sulfite additives are to be added on premises to any foods served 
under the resultant contract. 

 
 E. FOOD PREPARATION 
 

1. Method: CONTRACTOR shall utilize the traditional cook and serve 
methodology, recipes, menus, and production schedules must all be designed 
to minimize the risk of spoilage. 

 
2. Recipes: A file of tested bulk recipes adjusted to a yield appropriate for the 

population counts specified must be maintained on the premises. 
 
3. Optimum Temperature Ranges: All chilled food must be held and served at no 

more than 41 degrees F. and all hot food items held and served at no less than 
140 degrees F. (Washington State Manual, School Food Safety inspection 
Manual). 

 



 

 

 
 

F. DATE CODES 
 
A code system acceptable to the respective Food Service Contract Administrators 
must be utilized to date all sack meals to prevent consumption of dated or spoiled 
foods. After 48 hours, all unused sack meals must be discarded. 
 

 G. SANITATION AND SAFETY  
 

1. Laws and Regulations:  The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all federal, 
state and local laws and ordinances regarding health, sanitation, safety and 
environmental disposal regulations.  The CONTRACTOR shall be subject 
to inspections in the kitchen by the Benton-Franklin Counties 
Environmental Health Services, Benton-Franklin Counties Health District, 
State of Washington Health Inspectors, and authorized personnel from the 
BCC. 

 
2. Food Handlers Cards and Medical Exams: The CONTRACTOR shall 

provide medical examinations as required by law and appropriate records 
for each employee will be kept on file with the respective Food Service 
Contract Administrator. This includes a current food handler's card on file 
for all the CONTRACTOR'S staff and management. All CONTRACTOR 
management and supervisory staff must successfully complete the 
National Restaurant Association sponsored "ServSafe" program within six 
months of contract initiation and within three months of employment 
thereafter. 

 
3. Food Samples: The CONTRACTOR shall save samples of all meals, 

including sack meals, in a freezer at all facilities for a period of not less than 
72 hours for testing in the event of an outbreak of food poisoning or 
contamination. Samples must be clearly marked as to the dates and times 
of preparation, service and storage. 

 
4. Emergency Situation Reports: The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for 

immediately notifying the on duty correctional supervisor of any fires in the 
kitchen or related areas and of any accidents or injuries, no matter how 
minor, involving CONTRACTOR personnel.  Such reports shall be made 
verbally and in writing.  CONTRACTOR personnel shall cooperate in any 
reasonable fashion with any investigation required by the correctional 
supervisor or his/her designee that is necessitated by such accidents or 
injuries. 

 
5. Employee Physical Health: The CONTRACTOR shall not permit 

employees with communicable health problems (including open sores) to 
work. 

 
6. Worker’s Compensation / L&I: The CONTRACTOR is responsible for 

processing all Workers Compensation reports relating to its employees. 



 

 

 
 

 
 H. FOOD DELIVERY AND SERVICE  
 

Meal carts carrying the specified meal trays will be available to detention staff to 
deliver to pod areas 15 to 30 minutes prior to the following scheduled meal service 
times: 

 
Breakfast   6:30 AM  Lunch 12:00PM  Dinner 5:30 PM 
 
All food must be held in the appropriate hot or cold holding units or properly temped 
insulated carriers. 
 
A BCC reporting form is filled out at each meal. The reporting form enables BCC 
staff to quickly ascertain that all meal items have been provided.  This form will be 
used for billing reconciliation purposes.  The form must show the following 
information: 
 
1. Number of meals ordered 
2. Number of meals received 
3. Number and type of special meals ordered with space for recipient signature 
4. The number of trays and beverages provided 

 
The carts will be returned to the kitchen within one (1) hour of the scheduled meal 
service time.   

 
 I.   DISPOSABLES / EXPENDABLES 

 
The CONTRACTOR shall furnish all paper, plastic ware, sacks, paper towels, hand 
soap and all other kitchen related supplies for the kitchen area operation and food 
service. The BCC reserves the right to request that samples of disposable goods 
be submitted prior to contract execution.  
 

J.         RECEIVING 
 
 The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for scheduling product delivery and for 

assuring that qualified personnel are on site and available for all kitchen product 
deliveries.  The CONTACTOR should notify its Vendors that there is only space in 
the receiving area for one large truck at a time.  

  
 K.        SALESPERSONS 
 

The CONTRACTOR should encourage all salespersons to call at their district 
offices. No salesperson will be permitted in the secured portions of the facilities. If 
a salesperson must call on the CONTRACTOR'S unit managers, the managers 
must meet the salesperson in the public reception areas. [The CONTRACTOR 
shall minimize the use of this area as much as possible.] Note: Exceptions may be 
made for equipment repairs, deliveries or installations at the discretion of the on-



 

 

 
 

duty correctional supervisor who must be notified in advance of any attempt to 
bring such persons into the facility. 

 
L.        EQUIPMENT OWNERSHIP & RESPONSIBILITY 

 
Requirement: The CONTRACTOR shall warrant that it will take all reasonable and 
prudent measures necessary to assure the COUNTY that its equipment is being 
properly used and maintained.  The CONTRACTOR will assume full financial 
responsibility for any damage incurred due to its employee’s negligent handling of 
COUNTY owned fixtures, furniture and equipment less normal wear and tear. 
 
Preventative Maintenance & Equipment Repairs; All current kitchen equipment, 
fire extinguishers and fire suppression systems are the responsibility of the 
COUNTY.   
 
Space / Office Equipment: The COUNTY will provide a facility and current 
equipment required for the CONTRACTOR to produce the required number of 
meals.  Space will be provided to the CONTRACTOR for a desk and related 
equipment to allow the CONTRACTOR to conduct business.  The COUNTY will 
furnish a phone with basic service at no cost to the CONTRACTOR.  If the 
CONTRACTOR makes any long distance calls on the phone provided by the 
COUNTY, the CONTRACTOR will be liable for all cost associated with such calls.  
CONTRACTOR will be responsible for supplying all other necessary office 
furniture (desk, chair, etc.), equipment (computer, monitor, printer, etc.), and all 
office supplies.  
 
Cooking Related Ventilation Systems: The COUNTY will assume responsibility for 
the proper maintenance and steam cleaning of the hood ventilation and stack 
systems a minimum of twice annually at the COUNTY’s expense. 
 
County Maintenance Assistance: The CONTRACTOR may, upon request, utilize 
COUNTY’s maintenance personnel for minor electrical and equipment repairs. The 
decision to repair or not repair rests solely with COUNTY. 
 
The CONTRACTOR will be expected to inform the BCC Facilities Supervisor 
immediately of any equipment problems or deliberate mistreatment of same by a 
CONTRACTOR’S employee. 
 
Inventory Procedures: The CONTRACTOR and BCC shall jointly inventory, at 
least annually, all capital equipment and COUNTY-owned service ware under the 
CONTRACTOR'S direct control. As part of this inventory, a general assessment 
as to the condition and expected useful life of each item will be made. The 
CONTRACTOR will be liable for the replacement cost for all unaccounted items. 
A separate list of all CONTRACTOR supplied equipment must be maintained and 
submitted to the BCC annually. 
 
The CONTRACTOR has sole responsibility for properly securing and maintaining 



 

 

 
 

this equipment in accordance with all health codes, food service industry best 
practices and specified security procedures. 

 
M. SMALL WARES 

 
Once the accepted inventory amount of 125% is reached by the COUNTY, the  
CONTRACTOR shall, at its expense, maintain at 125% of the Average Daily 
Population (ADP) for the facility all small wares such as knives, spatulas, ladles, 
spoons, whips and related cooking utensils. Service ware such as insulated trays, 
cups, permanent flatware, delivery carts, insulated bulk food carriers, straps, and 
related items are considered small wares. Additionally, the CONTRACTOR will 
provide and replace all sanitation and janitorial equipment. Once purchased, all 
small wares become the property of the COUNTY. 

 
N. AUXILIARY FOOD SERVICE 

 
The CONTRACTOR must be available to provide food for visitors and other related 
COUNTY functions. The costs for auxiliary food services will be subject to 
individual requirements under terms written and agreed to by both parties. Such 
arrangements shall be priced on a cost-plus basis, with a specified not-to-exceed 
percentage mark-up, which will be negotiated with the successful Proposer. 

 
31.  COMPENSATION: For the services performed hereunder, the CONTRACTOR shall be 
 paid as follows: 
 

A. The CONTRACTOR shall be paid in accordance with the cost per meal outline in 
Exhibit A attached hereto. The Proposer shall implement the new price level once 
the population level has been reached and sustained for a period of three (3) days 
or longer. 

 
B. CONTRACTOR agrees to provide the COUNTY with religious and 

vegan/vegetarian meals at no extra charge for up to 10% of the BCC population 
based on the current religious and vegan/vegetarian meal menu. If religious and 
vegan/vegetarian meals exceed 10% of the population, the COUNTY will be 
charged an additional $0.15 cents per regular meal cost for each religious and 
vegan/vegetarian meal.  

 
C. No payment shall be made for any work performed by the CONTRACTOR, except 
 for work identified and set forth in this Contract. 
 
D. The CONTRACTOR may submit invoices to the COUNTY not more than once per 

week during the progress of the work for partial payment of the work completed to 
date. Invoices shall cover the time CONTRACTOR performed work for the County 
during the billing period. The COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR for services 
rendered in the month following the actual delivery of work and will remit payment 
within twenty (20) days from the date of receipt. 

 



 

 

 
 

E. The CONTRACTOR shall not be paid for services rendered under this Contract 
 unless and until they have been performed to the satisfaction of the COUNTY. 
 
F. In the event the CONTRACTOR has failed to perform any substantial obligation to 

be performed by the CONTRACTOR under this Contract and such failure has not 
been cured within ten (10) days following notice from the COUNTY, the COUNTY 
may, in its sole discretion, upon written notice to the CONTRACTOR, withhold any 
and all monies due and payable to the CONTRACTOR, without penalty, until such 
failure to perform is cured or otherwise adjudicated. "Substantial" for the purposes 
of this Contract means faithfully fulfilling the terms of this Contract with variances 
only for technical or minor omissions or defects. 

 
 Unless otherwise provided for in this Contract or any exhibits or attachments 

hereto, the CONTRACTOR will not be paid for any billings or invoices presented 
for services rendered prior to the execution of this Contract or after its termination. 

 
32. BENTON COUNTY BACKGROUND CHECK  
 

A. The CONTRACTOR, its employees, subcontractors, and employees who will be 
working onsite are required to complete in full the Security Background Check form 
attached hereto and referenced herein as Exhibit C. Successful completion of the 
background check, as determined by COUNTY, is required prior to the first day of 
work or entry into the jail. The completed form should be emailed to 
Bobbi.Romine@co.benton.wa.us or faxed to 509-222-3745 attention: Bobbi 
Romine. The CONTRACTOR agrees to remove any of its employees, or 
subcontractor employees, prior to performance hereunder if in the sole discretion 
of the COUNTY said employees fail the Security Background Check.  In addition, 
CONTRACTOR agrees to provide the COUNTY notice if during the performance 
of work hereunder any of its’ employees, or subcontractors’ employees, are 
charged with or convicted of any crime. Finally, if the CONTRACTOR, its 
employees, subcontractors, or their employees discover that a friend or family 
member is in the jail’s custody they must immediately notify jail staff.   

 
B. In addition to the above, prior to performance hereunder, the CONTRACTOR, its 

employees, subcontractors, and their employees who will be working onsite will 
present themselves, their government issued identification and a check, cash or 
money order for $34.75 for livescan, or $52.75 if required to ink roll the finger print, 
to the Records Staff at the Benton COUNTY Sheriff’s Office. Fingerprints will be 
taken and submitted to Washington State Patrol for verification.  A complete 
fingerprint based criminal history check and local criminal history will be completed 
by the Records Sergeant.  Information regarding any felony or misdemeanor 
conviction history will be presented to the Undersheriff for a determination if the 
individual will be allowed UNESCORTED access to the facility.  Any felony 
convictions for a CONTRACTOR employee will be presented to the Washington 
State Patrol WSP ACCESS section to determine if they will allow unescorted 
access to locations which have access to the network housing the ACCESS 
program; which is anything connecting to the COUNTY network and the majority 



 

 

 
 

of computers within the Jail and Sheriff’s facility. 
 
C. Prior to performance hereunder, CONTRACTOR, its employees, subcontractors, 

and their employees shall complete CJIS Online training.  This is a web based 
training accessible from any computer. Contractor shall provide a contact for their 
company who will monitor and make sure backgrounded employees have 
completed training.  
 
If this training has been taken previously for another criminal justice agency, it will 
not need to be repeated as the Records Sergeant will be able to locate the 
employee names online.  CONTRACTOR shall provide Bobbi Romine at 
Bobbi.Romine@co.benton.wa.us the contact information for the individual who will 
monitor and ensure employee training is complete.  Ms. Romine will then provide 
this individual with the website and instructions for completing training. 
 
Should the COUNTY determine any individuals performing work hereunder are 
required to be escorted at all times within the facility, the escort must be ACCESS 
certified or have taken the CJIS Online Course and have a fingerprint based 
criminal history check. 
 

33. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT 
 

CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges that the COUNTY is a governmental entity and as 
such is subject to the requirements of the Public Records Act, RCW 42.56 et seq. 
Accordingly, CONTRACTOR understands that to the extent a proper request is made, the 
COUNTY may be required by virtue of that Act to disclose any records related to this 
Contract actually in its possession or in CONTRACTOR’S possession. This may include 
records that CONTRACTOR might regard as confidential or proprietary. To the extent that 
CONTRACTOR provides any records to the COUNTY that it regards as confidential or 
proprietary, it agrees to conspicuously mark the records as such. CONTRACTOR also 
hereby waives any and all claims or causes of action for any injury it may suffer by virtue 
of COUNTY’S release of records covered under the Public Records Act. COUNTY agrees 
to take all reasonable steps to notify CONTRACTOR in a timely fashion of any request 
made under the Public Records Act which will require disclosure of any records marked 
by CONTRACTOR as confidential or proprietary, so that CONTRACTOR may seek a 
judicial order of protection if necessary. 

 
34. CONTRACT REPRESENTATIVES / NOTICES 
 

Each party to this Contract shall have a contract representative.  Each party may change 
its representative upon providing written notice to the other party. Any notice required 
hereunder shall be deemed to have been given if delivered in writing personally to the 
following individuals, or three business days after being sent a registered or certified 
United States mail return receipt and address as follows: 

 
 
 



 

 

 
 

 A. Benton County Corrections of Bureau    
  Attn: Lt. Robert Guerrero 
  7122 West Okanogan Place, Bldg. B 
  Kennewick, WA 99336 
  (509) 783-1451 Ext 3366 
  Robert.Guerrero@co.benton.wa.us  
 
 
 B. Consolidated Food Management, Inc.   
  Attn: Ted Hanby, District Manager  
  565 Andover Park West, Suite 115 
  Tukwila, WA 98188 
  Office: (206) 232-9771 
  Cell: (206) 678-3429 
  thanby@cfm-inc.com  
 
  







AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date: Dec. 06, 2016        
Subject: Contract Amendment w/ 

CI Information 
Management 

Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  

TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract __X__    
Pass Resolution  __X__ 
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion _____  
Other  _____ 

Consent Agenda           __X__    
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____ 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 

Benton County currently has a contract in place with CI Shred (CI Information Management) for as needed 
document destruction throughout Benton County Departments.   

A majority of the departments within Benton County use CI Support, LLC dba/CI Information Management 
as their primary document destruction company.  

Benton County departments are pleased with the services CI Information Management provides and 
recommends entering into another personal service contract for the calendar years of 2017 and 2018. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the Resolution and Personal Service Contract between Benton County and CI Support, LLC 
dba/CI Information Management for a contract amount not to exceed $75,000 including WSST. 

PA APPROVAL 

Ryan Lukson  

FISCAL IMPACT 

Expenditures shall be paid out of each individual department who utilizes the contract.  

MOTION 

Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
ttt. Contract w/CI Support for Local Document Destruction Services



Orig: Commissioners  L. Small 
cc:  Auditor; S. Araiza; All Departments; CI Shred  

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this _______ day of __________________, 2016  

 
 

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

         
Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: ______________________________       Commissioners of Benton County, 
                       Clerk of the Board     Washington 
 

IN THE MATTER OF A PERSONAL SERVICE CONTRACT BETWEEN BENTON 
COUNTY AND CI SUPPORT, LLC DBA/ CI INFORMATION MANAGEMENT FOR 
LOCAL DOCUMENT DESTRUCTION SERVICES FOR ALL BENTON COUNTY 
DEPARTMENTS 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2012-677… the County need not advertise or follow a formal 
competitive bidding procedure for service contracts, but rather the County may instead evaluate 
and utilize the procedures it deems best under the individual circumstances in order to obtain 
services of the highest quality at the lowest cost; and  
 
WHEREAS, a majority of the departments within Benton County use CI Support, LLC dba/CI 
Information Management as their primary document destruction company; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County departments are pleased with the services CI Information 
Management provides and recommends entering into another personal service contract for the 
calendar years of 2017 and 2018; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington 
hereby concurs with the recommendation and awards the service contract for document destruction 
services for all Benton County Departments to CI Support, LLC dba/CI Information Management 
for a contract amount not to exceed $75,000.00 including WSST; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman of the Board to sign 
the service contract between Benton County and CI Support, LLC dba/CI Information Management 
attached hereto; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the contract shall begin January 1, 2017 and shall terminate 
December 31, 2018. 



































  
 

Sales Rep 

Prepared for Service Location(s) 

Benton County Washington All Benton County 
Departments 

 

Qty. Item Service Description Rate Cost 

Onsite 64 
gallon 

Secure onsite destruction weekly, bi-
weekly, every 4 weeks as needed  

$20.00 per 
64 gal bin 

64 gallon 
Purge Svc. 

Secure onsite destruction of stored 
documents-filling 5 or more 64 gal 
bins. 

$15.00 per 
64 gal bin 

Misc. tech 
Media, 
CD’s, tapes, 
small drives, 
etc. 

Secure pick-up and transport to our 
facility for technology destruction. 
Items are weighed and charged per 
pound.  

.60 cents 
per lb. 

Hard Drive 
Destruction 

Secure pick-up and transport to our 
facility for destruction of hard drives 

$4.00 per 
drive 

Services will include the fuel surcharge currently at 8%

 Please call us at 509-586-6090 if you have any questions. 

Thank you for allowing us to provide you this quote. 

900 South Dayton  
PO Box 7346 
Kennewick, WA  99336 
Phone: 509-586-6090 
Fax: 509-585-1443 
www.CiShred.com 

Proposal 

Date: September 13, 2016 
Prepared by: 
Brandi Holt Information 
Management Specialist 

CI Shred is a division of Columbia Industries (CI). Established in 1963, CI is a local non-profit organization 
whose focus is to develop the work skills of people with disabilities. Building on their “unique abilities,” we 
provide vocational training programs that will lead to community employment. 

Exhibit A 



AGENDA ITEM:   
MTG. DATE: December 6, 2016 
MEMO. DATE: November 17, 2016 
SUBJECT: Short Plat Vacation SPV 
2016-003 - Christopher Bohlke 
Prepared By: Donna Hutchinson 
Reviewed By: Clark A. Posey 

TYPE OF ACTION 
NEEDED 
Execute Contract    
Pass Resolution          
Pass Ordinance      
Pass Motion              X 
Other                   

Consent Agenda  
Public Hearing       X 
1st Discussion     
2nd Discussion    
Other                 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
On October 1, 2008, Short Plat 3149 was recorded, which created 2 Lots. Lots 1 and 2 contained 
a previously recorded 20-foot natural drainage easement, AF 91-10295.  Christopher and Megan 
Bohlke, owners of Lot 1 along with Philip and Cheryl Colgan, owners of Lot 2 of Short Plat 3206 
have submitted an application requesting that this easement be vacated off of the Short Plat.  
 
Owners of property within 300 feet of the outer perimeter of Short Plat 3149 have been notified, 
and all owners within Short Plat 3149 have signed the short plat vacation application. All 
concerned agencies such as the Benton County Fire Marshal, the Benton-Franklin Health 
Department, Benton Fire District #1, Benton PUD and any other utility companies have been 
notified.  None of the notified agencies had any concerns regarding the proposed vacation. 
 
SUMMARY 
The Planning Department has received a request for the vacation of the 20 foot drainage 
easement on Lots 1 and 2 of Short Plat 3149, as described above. Benton County Code requires 
the Board of County Commissioners to conduct a public hearing on the proposed vacation and 
allow for public comments regarding the vacation request. The public hearing notice for 
application SPV 2016-003 was published on November 24, 2016 and the public hearing is 
scheduled for December 6, 2016. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is the recommendation of the Planning Department that the Board of County Commissioners 
conduct a public hearing, and based on the testimony received, either approve or deny the 
request. Based on the information received thus far, the Planning Department recommends 
approval of the proposed vacation of the 20 foot natural drainage easement on Lots 1 and 2 of 
Short Plat 3149. 
 
MOTION 
The Benton County Planning Department recommends the following motion: The Benton County 
Board of Commissioners approves the vacation of the 20 foot natural drainage easement A.F. # 
91-10295 located over the Westerly portion of Lot 2 and the Southeast corner of Lot 2 on Short 
Plat 3149.  
 
This motion is conditioned upon the applicant recording a document that relinquishes the 
underlying easement (A.F. # 91-10295) with the Benton County Auditor. That the applicant 
provides the Benton County Planning Department with a copy of the recorded document, prior to 
the signing of the resolution by the Board of County Commissioners. The document must be 
recorded within 1 year of the date of approval by the Benton County Board of Commissioners or 
this approval will be null and void. 

WEH
Text Box
Short Plat Vacation – SPV 2016-003 ~ C Posey

























 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:  12/6/2016         
Subject: Vacation of 

Wheat Road 
Prepared by:       MSR        
Reviewed by:                  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  XX  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           _____ 
Public Hearing            _XX__  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The City of Kennewick has been working on construction of a new road called Bob Olson Parkway.  A 
portion of that new road crosses over existing right of way for Wheat Road within Benton County.  As the 
new road is nearing completion that portion of Wheat Road is no longer necessary for public access.   
 
The City and the other adjoining property owner BWR Holdings LLC (a.k.a. Apollo, Inc.) have petitioned that 
the unnecessary portion of Wheat Road right of way be vacated.  The Board accepted the petition on 
November 15, 2016 (Res 2016-888), ordered the County Engineer to prepare a report on said vacation and 
scheduled a public hearing to consider the vacation on December 6, 2016. 
 
SUMMARY 
A portion of Wheat Road is no longer needed as part of the County road system.  The adjoining land owners 
have submitted a petition to vacate that portion of the road and the Board has scheduled a public hearing to 
consider the matter. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the vacation and execute the attached Resolution at the 
completion of the public hearing. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
All costs associated with considering the petition will be paid by the petitioners. 
 
MOTION 
 
I move to approve a resolution vacating and abandoning a portion of Wheat Road located in the 
north half of the northeast quarter of Section 12, Township 8 North, Range 28 East. 

WEH
Text Box
Vacation of Wheat Road ~ M Rasmussen





Overview 

 

This report is written to provide information in considering the vacation of a portion of Wheat Road, an 

improved County roadway.  The report was ordered by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, in 

response to a petition to vacate such right of way, via Resolution 2016‐888.  The report highlights the 

historical, legal and engineering aspects of the proposed vacation. 

 

Background 

 

The County holds a right of way, 60 feet in width, for Wheat Road extending from Clodfelter Road south 

to the Kennewick Irrigation District (KID) main canal.  

 

Wheat Road is currently a gravel road.  Until 2009 it served as access for an orchard along is western 

edge but the trees have since been removed.  Now the road serves two parcels, which are undeveloped, 

and provides access to the KID main canal.  There are no utilities located within the right of way. 

 

The City of Kennewick recently complete construction of a portion of its Bob Olson Parkway project.  The 

new Parkway connects with Clodfelter road approximately 100 feet east of the current Wheat Road 

connection point.  The Parkway extends south from Clodfelter and overlaps the Wheat Road right of 

way approximately 250 feet south of Clodfelter Road. 

 

The property owner located at the Clodfelter and Wheat Road intersection has been working with the 

City and County to realign the roadways in that area.  The City purchased a portion of the property for 

its Parkway project.  The property owner conditioned the sale on the unused portion of Wheat Road 

being vacated once the Parkway project was completed.   

 

The City and the property owner, BWR Holdings LLLP (AKA Apollo Inc) have petitioned the County to 

vacated the now unnecessary portion of Wheat Road.  The Board accepted the petition on November 

15, 2016 (Res 2016‐888) and ordered the County Engineer to prepare a report on said petition.  The 

Board also scheduled a public hearing to consider the petition on December 6, 2016.  The Public Hearing 

was advertised and a notice was posted on site in accordance with law. 

 

Legal Consideration 

 

Chapter 36.87 RCW sets forth the procedures, conditions and considerations for roadway vacation.  The 

Board of County Commissioners is responsible for the layout, construction, maintenance and 

administration of the County road system.  

 

Historical Wheat Road provided the only means of legal access for two parcels.  With the construction of 

the City’s Parkway project the parcel in question have an alternate means of access.  The portion of 

Wheat Road being considered for vacation is no longer needed for access. 

 

   

 



Engineering Consideration 

 

Wheat Road became a County Road in 1957.  It is currently maintained as a gravel road.  With the 

completion of the City’s Parkway project the section proposed for vacation has been replaced with a 5 

lane wide paved section.  This provides a significant improvement to access for the adjoining properties.  

Further, with the replacement of this portion of Wheat Road by a City Street the burden on the County’s 

maintenance operation is reduced.  

 

Recommendation 

 

It is the opinion of the County Engineer that this portion of Wheat Road is useless as a part of the 

County road system and should be vacated. 

 



Vacation of a portion of Wheat Road Page 1 of 2 

Return to: 
Benton County Public Works 
P.O. Box 1001 
Prosser,  WA  99350 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 R E S O L U T I O N 
 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, 
WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY ROADS RE: PROPOSED VACATION AND 
ABANDONMENT OF A PORTION OF WHEAT ROAD LOCATED IN THE NORTH HALF 
OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 12,  TOWNSHIP 8 NORTH, RANGE 28 
EAST, WM; 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2016-888, dated November 15, 2016, scheduled a public hearing for 
December 6, 2016 to consider the petition to vacate and abandon the portion of Wheat Road 
described in Exhibit A and shown on Exhibit B both attached hereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, the right of way requested for vacation and abandonment is a 60.00' wide strip of 
land currently bisecting parcel # 112881012849002; and 
 
WHEREAS, no easements are required to remain for utilities; and 
 
WHEREAS, there being no further testimony forthcoming, the Board closed the Public Hearing 
and finds as follows: 
 

1. Notice of public hearing was given as provided by statute; 
 
2. The subject road is existing improved county road with a gravel surface; 

 
3. The road has been replaced by a new road providing legal access to all parcels adjacent; 

 
4. After field review the County Engineer recommended that the public will be benefited by 

the road being vacated and abandoned, and the road is useless as part of the county road 
system; NOW, THEREFORE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Vacation of a portion of Wheat Road Page 2 of 2 

BE IT RESOLVED that the portion of Wheat Road described in Exhibit A and depicted in Exhibit 
B, both attached hereto, be vacated and abandoned. 

 
 
 

Dated this        6th            day of                  December         , 2016. 
 
 

      
Chairman 
      
                    
       
Chairman Pro-Tem 
  
     
       

                                 Member 
 

 
Attest:____________________________  Constituting the Board of County 
Clerk of the Board     Commissioners of Benton County, 
       Washington.   
 
 
Orig.:  Benton County Road Department Matt Rasmussen 
 



 
 

Exhibit A 
Vacation of a Portion of Wheat Road 

 
A portion of a 60 feet wide easement, commonly known as Wheat Road, recorded under 
Auditor’s File No. 373624 located in Section 12, Township 8 North, Range 28 East, Willamette 
Meridian, Benton County Washington also being a portion of Lot 2, Short Plat 2849, according to 
the survey thereof recorded under Auditor’s File No. 2005-002621, records of Benton County, 
Washington more particularly described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the Northeast corner of said Lot 2, Thence S 60 32’ 00” W along the North line of 
said Lot 2 also being the Southerly Right of Way line of Clodfelter Road, for a distance of 471.72 
feet, more or less, to the Easterly line of a 60.00 foot wide easement known as Wheat Road 
recorded under Auditor’s File No. 373624 and the True Point of Beginning; 
 
Thence continuing S 60 32’ 00” W along the North line of said Lot 2 also being the Southerly 
Right of Way line of Clodfelter Road, for a distance of 65.03 feet, more or less, to the Westerly 
line of a 60.00 foot wide easement known as Wheat Road recorded under Auditor’s File No. 
373624; Thence S 06 47’ 00” E a distance of 595.70 feet; Thence N 1 50’ 07” E, for a distance 
of 376.25 feet  to a point of curvature to the right, said curve to the right being concave to the 
Southeast, having a radius of 658.00 feet, Thence along said curve to the Right having a central 
angle of 01 53’ 40”, for an arc distance of 21.76 feet (the radius point of which bears S 88 09’ 
53” E, the long chord bears N 02 46’ 57” E a distance of 21.75 feet),more or less, to the Easterly 
line of a 60.00 foot wide easement known as Wheat Road recorded under Auditor’s File No. 
373624; ; Thence N 06 47’ 00” W, for a distance of 227.32 feet, more or less, to the Southerly 
Right of Way line of Clodfelter Road and the True Point of Beginning. 
 
Said area containing 24,622 Square Feet, More or Less. 
 
Together with a portion of a 60 feet wide easement, commonly known as Wheat Road, recorded 
under Auditor’s File No. 373624 located in Section 12, Township 8 North, Range 28 East, 
Willamette Meridian, Benton County Washington also being a portion of Lot 2, Short Plat 2849, 
according to the survey thereof recorded under Auditor’s File No. 2005-002621, records of 
Benton County, Washington more particularly described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the Northeast corner of said Lot 2, Thence S 60 32’ 00” W along the North line of 
said Lot 2 also being the Southerly Right of Way line of Clodfelter Road, for a distance of 471.72 
feet, more or less, to the Easterly line of a 60.00 foot wide easement known as Wheat Road 
recorded under Auditor’s File No. 373624 Thence S 06 47’ 00” E, along the Easterly line of said 
60.00 foot wide easement, for a distance of 227.32 feet; feet  to a point of curvature to the left, 
and the True Point of Beginning; 
 
Thence along said curve to the left being concave to the Southeast, having a radius of 658.00 
feet, Thence along said curve to the Right having a central angle of 01 53’ 40”, for an arc 
distance of 21.76 feet (the radius point of which bears S 86 16’ 13” E, the long chord bears S 02 
46’ 57” W a distance of 21.75 feet); ; Thence S 1 50’ 07” W, for a distance of 376.25 feet, more 
or less, to the Westerly line of said 60.00 foot wide easement; Thence S 06 47’ 00” E, for a 
distance of 15.37 feet Thence S 89 02’ 50” E, for a distance of 60.55 feet, more or less to the 
Easterly line of said 60.00 foot wide easement; Thence N 06 47’ 00” W, for a distance of 416.98 
feet, to the True Point of Beginning; 
 
Said area containing 13,040 Square Feet, More or Less. 



D

ENGINEERING

DIVISION

Wheat Rd Vaction

C

L

O

D

F

E

L

T

E

R

 

R

O

A

D

W

H

E
A

T
 
R

O

A

D

T

P

B

 

1

TPB 2

EXHIBIT B

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHEAT ROAD R/W EASEMENT VACATION 24,645 SF +/-

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING LEGAL EXHIBITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
10/27/16

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZONTAL SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHEAT ROAD R/W EASEMENT VACATION 13,040 SF +/-

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE CORNER LOT 2 SHORT PLAT 2849

AutoCAD SHX Text
60' WHEAT ROAD R/W EASEMENT CREATED BY AF# 373624

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 SHORT PLAT 2849

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2 SHORT PLAT 2849

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2 SHORT PLAT 2849

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LINE NORTH HALF NE QUARTER SECTION 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL AMON WASTEWAY DRAINAGE ESMT PARCEL LINE LOTS 1 & 2



 

AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date: 12-6-16        
Subject: Approval to seek 

bids 
Prepared by:       D. Waggoner  
Reviewed by:       

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract ______ 
Pass Resolution  ______  
Pass Ordinance  ______ 
Pass Motion  ___X__ 
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda           _____  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION / SUMMARY 
 
On October 11, 2016, with Resolution 2016-783, Benton County contracted with Meier Architecture for 
design and engineering services for the Metasys Upgrade/Chilled Water Loop Repair project. 
 
That project is ready to go out to bid.  Meier Architecture will be handling the advertising and bidding 
process. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve motion to authorize the Facilities Department to seek bids on the project. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The construction estimate is $402,000.00.  This is a conservative estimate. 
 
MOTION 
 
Move to approve a motion granting the Facilities Department to seek bids. 
  
 

WEH
Text Box
Request for Bids for Metasys Upgrade / Chilled Water Loop Project ~ D Waggoner


	CA - Clerk b.pdf
	Resolution
	Form

	CA - Clerk c.pdf
	Resolution
	Form

	CA - Commissioners d.pdf
	RESOLUTION
	BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON

	CA - Commissioners h.pdf
	RESOLUTION
	Chairman of the Board
	Member
	Constituting the Board of County


	CA - Commissioners i.pdf
	Resolution
	Form

	CA - Commissioners j.pdf
	Resolution
	Form

	CA - Commissioners k.pdf
	Resolution
	Form

	CA - Commissioners l.pdf
	Resolution
	Form

	CA - Coroner m.pdf
	Resolution
	Form

	CA - Facilites n.pdf
	Agenda Summary C.O. 2 JC Roofing
	Change Order 2
	Change Order #2

	CA - Facilities r.pdf
	Resolution PW Contract - Southern Folger.pdf
	Chairman of the Board
	Member
	Constituting the Board of County



	PH - SPV 2016-003.pdf
	Pass Ordinance     
	MOTION

	PH - Wheat Road Vacation.pdf
	Wheat Rd vacation-Exhibit B corrrected.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Wheat Rd Vacation



	CA - Commissioners i.pdf
	Resolution
	Form




